CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire

COUNTY COUNCIL

At:  Gadeirydd ac Aelodau’r Pwyllgor Dyddiad: Dydd Gwener, 5 Hydref
Archwilio Partneriaethau 2012

Rhif Union: 01824 712554

ebost: dcc_admin@denbighshire.gov.uk

Annwyl Gynghorydd

Fe’ch gwahoddir i fynychu cyfarfod y PWYLLGOR ARCHWILIO PARTNERIAETHAU,
DYDD IAU, 11 HYDREF 2012 am 9.30 am yn YSTAFELL BWLLGOR 1A, NEUADD Y
SIR, RHUTHUN.

Yn gywir iawn
G Williams
Pennaeth Gwasanaethau Cyfreithiol a Democrataidd

AGENDA

1 YMDDIHEURIADAU

2 DATGANIADAU O FUDDIANT

Yr Aelodau i ddatgan unrhyw fuddiant personol neu fuddiant sy’n rhagfarnu
unrhyw fusnes i'w ystyried yn y cyfarfod hwn.

3  MATERION BRYS FEL Y'U CYTUNWYD GAN Y CADEIRYDD

Hysbysiad o eitemau y dylid, ym marn y Cadeirydd, eu hystyried yn y cyfarfod
fel materion brys dan Adran 100B(4) Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972.

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc
Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.
Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446



4 CYDWEITHREDU PRIFFYRDD A SEILWAITH CONWY A SIR DDINBYCH

Ystyried adroddiad gan y Rheolwr Prosiect (copi ynghlwm) yn diweddaru’r
aelodau ar y cynnydd ac yn amlinellu argymhellion ar gyfeiriad y

cydweithredu yn y dyfodol.
AELODAETH
Y Cynghorwyr
Brian Blakeley Margaret McCarroll
Joan Butterfield Dewi Owens
Ann Davies Merfyn Parry
Meirick Davies Bill Tasker
Alice Jones Huw Williams
Pat Jones
COPIAU I'R:

Holl Gynghorwyr er gwybodaeth
Y Wasg a'’r Llyfrgelloedd
Cynghorau Tref a Chymuned

Prif Weithredwr / Chief Executive Mohammed Mehmet PhD BSc
Prif Swyddfeydd Y Cyngor/Council Offices, Rhuthun/Ruthin, Sir Ddinbych/Denbighshire LL15 1YN.
Ffon/Tel (01824) 706234 Ffacs/Fax (01824) 707446



Eitem Agenda 4

Adroddiad i: Pwyllgor Craffu Partneriaethau

Dyddiad y Cyfarfod: 11 Hydref 2012

Aelod Arweiniol / Swyddog: Aelod Arweiniol dros Fywyd
Cyhoeddus
Cyfarwyddwr Corfforaethol:
Cwsmeriaid

Awdur yr Adroddiad: Rheolwr Prosiect

Teitl: Cydweithredu Priffyrdd a Seilwaith

Conwy a Sir Ddinbych

1. Beth ydy testun yr adroddiad?

Y cynnydd y mae Awdurdodau Lleol Conwy a Sir Ddinbych yn ei wneud tuag
at gydweithredu o fewn y Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Seilwaith

2, Beth ydy’r rheswm dros wneud yr adroddiad hwn?

I gyflwyno argymhellion Bwrdd Rhaglen Cydweithredu Priffyrdd ac Isadeiledd
Conwy a Sir Ddinbych yn dilyn ystyried ‘Adroddiad Cynllun Gwasanaeth Drafft
Gwasanaeth Priffyrdd a Seilwaith Cwbl Integredig Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol
Conwy a Chyngor Sir Ddinbych’ (‘Conwy CBC and Denbighshire CC Joint
Highways and Infrastructure Fully Integrated Service: Report on the Draft
Service Design’) (Medi 2012) ar 12 Medi 2012.

3. Beth ydy’r Argymhellion?

Bod y Pwyligor yn ystyried, yn cynnig sylwadau, ac yn cefnogi’r argymhellion
isod a wnaed gan Fwrdd Rhaglen Gydweithredu Conwy a Sir Ddinbych:

Mae Bwrdd Rhaglen Cydweithredu Priffyrdd ac lIsadeiledd Conwy a Sir
Ddinbych (cefnogir gan y Ddau Dim Gweithredol Corfforaethol) yn argymell i'r
Cabinet:

(1) Gan nad yw’r Achos Busnes yn cyflwyno achos eglur dros Wasanaeth
Priffyrdd a Seilwaith cwbl integredig, ni ddylai Conwy a Sir Ddinbych
fwrw ymlaen gyda’r opsiwn hwn; a

(i) Bod Conwy a Sir Ddinbych yn parhau i chwilio am gyfleoedd pellach i
resymoli rheolaeth, lleihau costau a gwella gwasanaethau i’'n trigolion
trwy:

gryfhau’r meysydd iswasanaeth hynny sydd dan reolaeth sengl|,
= archwilio meysydd iswasanaeth Priffyrdd a Seilwaith lle y gallai
cydweithredu ddod & buddion i’'n trigolion,

Tudalen 3



archwilio cyfleoedd lleol (penodol i'r Awdurdod) ar gyfer
cydweithredu a threfniadau rheoli ar y cyd rhwng
gwasanaethau presennol,

cynnal a datblygu ein hymrwymiad it datblygiadau
rhanbarthol ar gludiant a all arwain at fuddion ychwanegol
o’'u datblygu’n iawn. Bydd yn rhaid i benderfyniadau fod yn
seiliedig ar achos busnes cadarn dros newid mewn
perthynas ag elfennau o’r fath,

a,

(i)  Bod y Cyfarwyddwyr Corfforaethol yn adrodd yn 6l i'r Cabinet ym mis
Tachwedd 2012 ar y gwaith sy’n gysylltiedig ag Argymhelliad 2.

4. Manylion yr adroddiad.

Mae copi llawn o ‘Adroddiad Cynllun Gwasanaeth Drafft Gwasanaeth
Priffyrdd a Seilwaith Cwbl Integredig Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Conwy a
Chyngor Sir Ddinbych’ (Conwy CBC and Denbighshire CC Joint Highways
and Infrastructure Fully Integrated Service :Report on the Draft Service
Design’ (Medi 2012) ar gael yn Atodiad 1.

Cefndir

Mae Conwy a Sir Ddinbych wedi ymrwymo i ddatblygu dulliau cydweithredol o
weithio lle mae yna achos busnes dros wneud hynny. Mae gan ein
hawdurdodau record gref o gydweithredu ac mae arnom eisiau i hyn barhau
dros oes ein gweinyddiaethau newydd.

Mae ein cydweithrediad ar Briffyrdd a Seilwaith yn cynhyrchu buddion i'n
trigolion ac mae’r ddau gyngor wedi ymrwymo at gryfhau cyd-weithio lle
bynnag bod achos ariannol neu achos gwasanaeth clir dros wneud hynny.
Dair blynedd yn 6él, Conwy a Sir Ddinbych oedd y cyntaf yng Nghymru i
benodi Cyd-Bennaeth Gwasanaethau Priffyrdd a Seilwaith er mwyn sicrhau
gwelliannau i'r gwasanaeth ynghyd ag arbedion ariannol. Dros y tair blynedd
diwethaf, mae ein cydweithrediad Priffyrdd a Seilwaith wedi cyflawni arbedion
o £300k sy'n golygu bod y ddau gyngor wedi gallu buddsoddi mewn
blaenoriaethau eraill neu rwystro toriadau i wasanaethau. Rydym hefyd wedi
penodi cydreolaeth mewn meysydd pwysig: cludiant ysgol a goleuadau stryd.

Y llwyddiannau hyn ynghyd &n hymrwymiad at gydweithio oedd y sbardun
dros ystyried integreiddio’n llawn yr holl is-wasanaethau o fewn y Gwasanaeth
Priffyrdd a Seilwaith dan un strwythur sengl cwbl integredig. Ar ddechrau
2012, comisiynodd yr Awdurdodau astudiaeth fanwl i ganfod a oedd yna
achos busnes dros wneud hynny. Mae’r astudiaeth honno bellach wedri’i
chwblhau ac ynghlwm wrth yr adroddiad hwn. Mae’r astudiaeth fanwl yn
dangos y byddai costau integreiddio’r gwasanaeth yn liwyr yn uchel iawn.
Ymbhellach, nid yw'n ymddangos fel petair manteision posibl yn ddigon i
wrthbwyso newidiadau a fyddai’n golygu amharu’'n sylweddol ar
wasanaethau, heb sén am lithriadau posibl. Am y rhesymau hyn, argymhelliad
Bwrdd Cydweithredu Conwy a Sir Ddinbych, gyda chefnogaeth y ddau Dim
Gweithredol Corfforaethol, yw peidio 4 bwrw ymlaen gyda’r model cwbl
integredig.

Tudalen 4



Y Ffordd Ymlaen

Mae’r ddau awdurdod yn parhau i fod yn ymrwymedig at chwilio am ffyrdd
eraill o gryfhau ein cydweithrediad. Byddwn yn edrych ar gyfleoedd pellach i
resymoli rheolaeth, lleihau costau a gwella gwasanaethau i'n trigolion. Bydd
hyn yn cynnwys y canlynol:
= Byddwn yn cryfhau'r meysydd is-wasanaeth hynny sydd dan
reolaeth sengl.
= Byddwn yn  archwilio meysydd is-wasanaeth Priffyrdd a
Seilwaith lle y gallai cydweithredu ddod & buddion i'n trigolion,
Byddwn yn archwilio cyfleoedd lleol (penodol i'r Awdurdod) ar
gyfer cydweithredu a threfniadau rheoli ar y cyd rhwng
gwasanaethau presennol,
Byddwn yn cynnal a datblygu ein hymrwymiad i'r datblygiadau
rhanbarthol ar gludiant a all arwain at fuddion ychwanegol o’u
datblygu’n iawn. Bydd yn rhaid i benderfyniadau fod yn seiliedig
ar achos busnes cadarn dros newid mewn perthynas ag
elfennau o’r fath.

Yng ngoleuni’r argymhelliad i beidio ag integreiddio’n llwyr, mae’n rhaid nawr
ystyried ai’r model presennol ar gyfer darparu gwasanaethau yw’r model
gorau it dyfodol. Mae’r ddau brif weithredwr wedi comisiynu gweithgor i
ystyried yr opsiynau posibl, gan gynnwys dau gyfarwyddwr corfforaethol sef
Sasha Davies o Gonwy a Hywyn Williams o Sir Ddinbych, gyda chefnogaeth
Danielle Edwards (Rheolwr Prosiect) a arweiniodd yr astudiaeth, a rhywun
sydd & chryn wybodaeth o’r maes, y Swyddogion S151, a’r Penaethiaid
Gwasanaeth Adnoddau Dynol. Rhoddwyd cyfarwyddyd ir cyfarwyddwr
corfforaethol bod yn rhaid i'r opsiynau ystyried y canlynol:

= sicrhau arbedion ariannol i'r ddau gyngor heb golli unrhyw

wasanaethau pwysig i drigolion;
cryfhau'r cydweithrediad y mae’r ddau awdurdod eisoes wedi
ymrwymo ato ar lefel is-wasanaeth, h.y. cludiant ysgol a
goleuadau stryd;

= ystyried opsiynau modelau darparu gwasanaeth rhyng-
awdurdod yn ogystal ag o fewn awdurdod;
sicrhau bod yr opsiynau i'w hystyried yn gyson gyda
datblygiadau rhanbarthol.

Gofynnwyd i’r cyfarwyddwyr adrodd ndl iw Prif Weithredwyr erbyn diwedd
Hydref. Bydd hyn yn arwain at adroddiad i'r Cabinetau ym mis Tachwedd
gydag argymhellion ar gyfer y ffordd ymlaen.

5. Sut mae’r penderfyniad yn cyfrannu at y Blaenoriaethau
Corfforaethol?

Mae’r penderfyniad hwn yn cyfrannu at y datganiad cynhwysfawr a wnaed
gan Gyngor Sir Ddinbych, sef i fod yn Gyngor Ardderchog, Agos at y
Gymuned. Mae’r Cynllun Corfforaethol newydd wedi nodi saith blaenoriaeth
ac mae ymgymryd a’r gwaith hwn yn ymwneud yn uniongyrchol gyda’r
blaenoriaethau o ‘Wella ein Ffyrdd’, ‘Moderneiddio’r Cyngor i ddarparu

Tudalen 5



arbedion effeithlonrwydd a gwella gwasanaeth i gwsmeriaid, ‘Strydoedd Glan
a Threfi Taclus’ ynghyd & ‘Datblygu economi lleol sy’n fywiog, iach a chryf.’

6. Beth fydd yn ei gostio a sut fydd yn effeithio ar wasanaethau
eraill?

Mae’r astudiaeth fanwl (gweler Atodiad 1, Adran 10) yn dangos y byddai
costau integreiddio’r gwasanaeth yn liwyr yn uchel iawn. Ymhellach, nid yw'n
ymddangos fel petai'r manteision posibl yn ddigon i wrthbwyso newidiadau a
fyddai’n golygu amharu’n sylweddol ar wasanaethau, heb s6n am lithriadau
posibl.

Wrth drafod yr opsiynau ar gyfer y ffordd ymlaen, bydd yn rhaid ystyried y
costau, Adnoddau Dynol a’r effaith ar wasanaethau eraill.

7. Pa ymgynghoriadau a gynhaliwyd?

Ers Ebrill 2012, mae’r Rheolwr Prosiect wedi gweithio gyda’r Tim Prosiect a'r
Swyddogion Cyfathrebu Priffyrdd a Seilwaith i ymgysylltu gyda rhanddeiliaid
mewnol (gan gynnwys Undebau) drwy gydol y prosiect trwy gyfrwng: y Timau
Datblygu, Timau Sicrhau Ansawdd, Gweithdai (Pennu Gweledigaeth a
Dylunio Gwasanaeth), Cylchlythyron a Chyfarfodydd. Cofnodwyd yr adborth a
dderbyniwyd, yn fwyaf amlwg wrth lunio’r Weledigaeth, Buddion, Risiau a
Dylunio Gwasanaeth.

Nid oes ymgynghori ffurfiol wedi digwydd ers Ebrill 2012.

Er mwyn sicrhau bod ein rhanddeiliaid yn derbyn gwybodaeth gyflawn cyn, yn
ystod ac ar 6l y broses ddemocrataidd, datblygwyd Cynllun Cyfathrebu
(Atodiad 2) yn seiliedig at Strategaeth Gyfathrebu Priffyrdd a Seilwaith. Mae’r
dyddiadau allweddol ar gyfer cyfathrebu fel a ganlyn:

Gweithgaredd Cyfathrebu Dyddiad
1. Llythyr i'r Gweinidog 20/09/2012
2. Cyfarfod Briffio gyda Rheolwyr Priffyrdd a
Seilwaith a Rheolwyr Is-wasanaethau CBSC a 25/09/2012
CSDd, gan gynnwys Penaethiaid Gwasanaeth
yr is-wasanaethau hynny sydd heb eu cysoni.
g.ydwsphrlgdggda r Grwp Swyddogion 25/09/2012
4. Hysbysu’r Undebau 03/10/2012
5. Cylchlythyr i Staff ac Aelodau 04/10/2012
6. Cyfarfodydd Craffu a Chabinet
6.1 CSDd Craffu Partneriaeth 11/10/2012
6.2 CBSC Craffu Partneriaeth 16/10/2012
6.3 CSDd Cabinet 23/10/2012
6.4 CBSC Cabinet 23/10/2012
éagngjlg% g Cr: P:lg:dsegé/mad Gweithredol o 24/10/2012

Tudalen 6



8. Datganiad y Prif Swyddog Ariannol

Un o'r prif ysgogiadau wrth wraidd llunio rhaglenni cydweithredu yw arbed
costau. Os nad oes modd llunio achos dros arbedion, neu o leiaf gwell
gwasanaeth am ddim cost ychwanegol, ni ddylai’r prosiect fynd yn ei flaen fel
y cynigiwyd. Mae’r rhaglen gydweithredu wedi cynhyrchu gwasanaethau
cydweithredol llwyddiannus fel goleuadau stryd, ac nid oes unrhyw reswm
pam na all yr elfennau hyn barhau.

Ni ddylai'r Cyngor barhau i ddilyn y prosiect ar ei ffurf bresennol, ond dylai
barhau i archwilio ffyrdd o sicrhau arbedion trwy weithio cydweithredol yn 'y
maes hwn.

9. Beth ydy’r risgiau, ac a oes yna unrhyw beth y gallwn ei wneud i’'w
lleihau?

Ceir cofrestr risg prosiect llawn i'r gwasanaeth cwbl integredig o fewn yr
adroddiad (Atodiad 1).

Bydd asesiad risg arall yn cael ei gynnal fel rhan o’r broses gwerthuso’r
opsiynau ar gyfer y ffordd ymlaen.

10. Pwer i wneud y Penderfyniad

S111 Deddf Llywodraeth Leol 1972

Rheoliadau Awdurdodau Lleol (Trefniadau Gweithredaeth) (Cyflawni
Swyddogaethau) (Cymru) 2002

Erthygl 6.3.2 o Gyfansoddiad y Cyngor

Swyddog Cyswlit:
Rheolwr Prosiect Rhanbarthol
Ffon: 01492 575588

Tudalen 7



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen 8



k Gwasanaeth Effeithlon mewn R
Partneriaeth i
o arnenae Sir Ddinbych
CO N WY Efficient Services in Denbighshire

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL Partnership COUNTY COUNCII
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Conwy CBC and Denbighshire CC
Joint Highways and Infrastructure Fully Integrated Service

Report on the Draft Service Design (September 2012)

Author: Danielle Edwards
Position: Project Manager
Version: v3

Date: 30/08/2012

Tudalen 9



Contents

1.
1.1
2,
2.1
22
3.
3.1
3.2
3.3
4,

5.

5.1

5.2

6.

6.1

6.2

6.3

7.

7.1

7.2

7.3

8.

8.1

8.2

8.3

8.4

9.

9.1

9.2

10.

10.1

10.2

10.3

1.

11.1

11.2

1.3

12.

13.
Appendix 1
Appendix 2
Appendix 3
Appendix 4
Appendix 5
Appendix 6

Purpose

Scope

Context & Drivers

Background

Project Arrangements

Current Service Arrangements

Current Structure

Current Financial Position

Collaboration Savings (outside of this project)

Shared Vision for a Conwy & Denbighshire Integrated Highways &

Infrastructure Service

Governance Model

Governance Option Appraisal

Identifying a Host Authority

Conwy & Denbighshire Integrated (Draft) Service Design
Developing the Draft Service Design
Draft Service Design

Rationale for Change

Staffing the New (Draft) Service Structure
Assumptions

Impact on Existing Staff

Cost of Staffing the New (Draft) Structure
Accommodation

Assumptions and Limitations

Option Appraisal

Accommodation Costs

Conclusions of the Option Appraisal

ICT

Assumptions and Limitations

ICT Costs

Financial Model

Financial Analysis

Potential for Future Savings

Charging Methodologies

HR Model

TUPE Arrangements

Salary Ranges

Policies & Procedures

Risk Management

Summary of Findings

Project Governance Structure
Breakdown of Functions Under the New Joint Service Structure
Staffing the Structure Costs

JH&I Accommodation Option Appraisal
ICT Report

Project Risk Register

Tudalen 10

= ©O© 00 NNI~>MDDWW®

11
12
14
14
15
16
20
20
20
21
23
23
24
25
26
27
27
28
29
30
30
30
32
32
32
32
34
35
38
39
45
47
55
70



1.

Purpose

The purpose of this report in relation to a fully integrated joint Highways &
Infrastructure Service is to:

outline the current position within both Conwy and Denbighshire;
share the draft service design;
make a recommendation with regards to Governance arrangements;

provide initial costs in relation to Human Resources(HR), Information
Communication & Technology(ICT) and Accommodation;

consider if delivering a joint fully integrated service is likely to result in a better
service that will cost less.

It is not the intention of this report to:

1.1

consider costs and benefits related to not proceeding with a fully. integrated

joint service — options for proceeding with an alternative approach would be

explored as part of an exit strategy should one, or both Cabinets withdraw

from a fully integrated approach;

provide the depth of detail expected from a Full'Business Case — should both
Cabinets resolve to proceed with a fully integrated approach based on the
draft service design outlined in this report, the project will reconsider the
assumptions made thus far to provide the detail and robustness expected

from a Full Business Case;

identify the full extent of benefitsand potential savings that could be realised

within the sub-service areas — this work will be undertaken in Phase 2 of the

project (see section 10.2).

Scope

In scope are the office-based staff working within the following aligned service and
sub-service areas (as'per the current structure within Conwy and Denbighshire):

= Business Quality & Customer Management

Harbour Management

= Maritime Service = Public Rights of Way

= Major Projects = Trunk Road Bridges

= County Road Bridges = Education Transport Service
= Transportation Policy = Asset Management

= Streetworks = Parking

= Parking Processes (W3P) = Traffic

= Road Safety = Accident Investigation

= Highway Development Control = Policy (TAITH)

= Highway Maintenance = Street Lighting

= Conwy & Denbighshire Works Unit & Trunk
Road Management

Out of scope are the depots and the non-aligned services (as per the current
structure within Conwy and Denbighshire) (the exception to this is with regards to
accommodation and the potential relocation of staff working within the non-aligned
service from either the Heath or Caledfryn):

= Emergency Planning = Fleet Management & Maintenance

= Financial Management = Countryside Services

= Flood & Coastal Protection = Public Transport (rail, bus, policy,
information)

PRiddalen 11



2. Context & Drivers

21 Background

The Cabinets of both Conwy(CCBC) and Denbighshire(DCC) councils took the
decision in their April 2008 meetings to collaborate on the appointment of a joint
Head of Service for Highways and Infrastructure. A subsequent report setting out
further details on how this proposal should be moved forward was submitted to
Scrutiny, and agreed at Cabinets in June/July 2008.

The Joint Head of Service has been in post since January 2009.

Since April 2011, significant work has been underway in the areas of HR, Finance,
Accommodation, Culture, IT, Support Services and Governance. This work was
presented in a feasibility report ‘Report on the Development of a Fully Integrated
Service’to Cabinets in December 2011, and a set of 23 actions were.agreed.

In addition to the recommendations, CCBC’s Cabinet also requested a Gateway
Review of the project to establish the projects’ ability to deliver.its aims and
objectives.

In April 2012, the CCBC and DCC Project Leads seconded a CCBC employee as
part-time Project Manager to; undertake a review “of the project, establish formal
project management arrangements, and develop the Full Business Case.

As the formal project management arrangements were developed, it became clear
within the project plan that there were a number of key stages that would need to be
undertaken prior to proceeding to a Full Business Case. It was the decision of the
Highways and Infrastructure Collaboration Board iin" April 2012 to wait for the draft
service design in September 2012, before making a recommendation to Cabinets as
to whether they should proceed with the project to a Full Business Case. It was
further agreed that any commitment by the Cabinets to proceed would be subject to a
Gateway Review at that time:

Whilst this project refers to and takes note of the actions following the
feasibility report in December 2011, it is recognised that the approach taken
since April -has . superseded this initial report, its findings and
recommendations.

2.2 - Project Arrangements
2.2.1 Project Governance

A clear governance model allows contributors to understand how they should engage
with the project, what is expected of them and what protections are provided to
ensure that their contributions will always be available to them. In addition, it
describes the quality control processes that help to assure the viability of the project.

The governance arrangement for the H&I Project is set out in Appendix 1, and has
been communicated to all internal stakeholders

Tudaiend2



2.2.2 Project Objectives

Should the project proceed to the Full Business Case, the Collaboration Board will
measure the success of the project by the following objectives:

Objective 1
That the findings of the Gateway Review support the continuation of the project.

Objective 2
That based on the Full Business Case for a ‘Conwy and  Denbighshire  Highways
and Infrastructure Fully Integrated Service — Phase 1: Joint Management

Structure’, each Local Authority Cabinet resolves that:
(i) CCBC and DCC will operate under one Management Structure;

(ii) all staff working within the ‘in-scope’ Service Areas will transfer to the Host
LA; and

(iii) Phase 2, delivering the programme of projects to join the:CCBC and DCC ‘in-
scope’ sub-service areas, can proceed under the agreed. (project and Joint
Committee) governance arrangements.

2.2.3 Key Outcomes for the Project

The project outcomes align with the 2012/13 Joint Service Business Planning
outcomes, developed through consultation with CCBC & DCC. H&I service staff and
council Members:

Outcome 1 - Residents and visitors to Conwy and Denbighshire have access to a
safe and well managed road network.

Outcome 2 - Properties in Denbighshire will have a reduced risk of flooding.

Outcome 3 - Residents and visitors to Conwy and Denbighshire have access to
high quality maritime facilities and a well managed natural
environment.

Outcome 4 - The Highways.and Infrastructure Service is efficient and well
managed.
2.2.4 Project Benefits

In April 2012, a ‘Visioning’ workshop was held with JH&I Service Area Managers and
a representation of staff from across the Support Services, with one of the outcomes
from the'workshop being the development of six clear project benefits.

Anticipated Project Benefits

Increased customer satisfaction (improved engagement through
1 Relationship Role, standard customer engagement, approaches and skKills,
better resolution of problems, better managed expectation)

The whole Service is recognised as a high performing service

2 (sharing of best practice, service consistency, process improvements /
systems, shared learning, using the integration to change the way we work as
well as merging)

Improved development and career opportunities for new and
existing employees (succession planning / development opportunities,
3 career opportunities, ability to take on apprenticeships, sharing knowledge,
making the best use of staff skill sets, opportunities for young people (grow
your own), succession planning and talent management)

PRiddalen 13



Increased flexibility in and efficient use of limited resources (Shared
expertise, Asset sharing, Capacity / share staff / flexibility, Offer specialist
services, increased capacity, expertise, experience and skills)

More robust legal compliance (policy alignment, reduced 3rd party claims)

Improved contribution to strategic agendas (Capacity to link into other
strategic agendas e.g. tourism, business development, employment routes —
releases capacity from operational to strategic, Links into other services /
processes e.g. planning)

Tudaien d4




3. Current Service Arrangements

3.1 Current Structure

The Highways and Infrastructure Service operates from 23 locations throughout
Conwy (CCBC) and Denbighshire (DCC), and employs in the region of 530 staff
across the two authorities.

There are in the region of 91 FTE ‘office based staff’ in scope working within CCBC
and in the region of 94 FTE in DCC, with two main administration bases; CCBC
being the Heath in Llanfairfechan, and DCC being Caledfryn in Denbigh.
Arrangements for which sub-service staff are based in the main administration offices
differ in each LA, and not all staff are office based all of the time.

The Joint Head of Service works across both CCBC and DCC, with bases in both the
Heath and Caledfryn. This post is supported by a Joint Programme Manager, based
mainly in the Heath. Below this post the structure divorces into a separate CCBC
and DCC structure, each with a Head of Operations.

Within each structure, whilst the majority of sub-service areas align,.the following do
not:

»  Emergency Planning - currently a sub-service area within the H&l Service in
DCC, and within the Corporate Civil Contingencies Unit in"CCBC (although a
responsible officer has been identified within Conwy H&l — namely the
Service Improvement Manager)

= Financial Management - currently a sub-service area within the H&I Service in
CCBC, and part of the Corporate Finance Team in DCC

= Flood & Coastal Protection-=:currently a sub-service area within the H&I
Service in DCC, and within the Environment & Technical Service in CCBC

» Fleet Management & Maintenance - currently a sub-service area within the
H&l Service in DCC, and within .the Environment & Technical Service in
CCBC

= Countryside Services - currently a sub-service area within the H&l Service in
CCBC, and within the Environment & Technical Service in DCC

= Public Transport (rail, bus, policy, information) - currently a sub-service area
within..the H&l Service in DCC, and within the Community Development
Service in Conwy

Across the two LA structures there are sub-service areas that formally share a
Manager; these are:

= Street Lighting — The CCBC & DCC budgets are separate. Staff are still
employed by their respective LAs. CCBC & DCC staff work in three separate
locations within their respective LA. A common Call Record Management
System is being used. A common data management system is being
implemented across the two LAs. Further work is ongoing to align working
practices.

= Passenger Transport — The CCBC & DCC budgets are separate. Staff are
still employed by their respective LAs. CCBC & DCC staff work from one
location in Caledfryn. Working practices are operating as one.

There are also a number of sub-services where the Manager post is vacant and as
an interim arrangement (until this project reaches its conclusion) in most cases, a
Manager in one LA is being provided with an honorarium to manage the sub-service
in the other LA.

PRdalen 15



3.2 Current Financial Position

The financial information relates to the 2011/12 revenue accounts. All capital
expenditure is excluded. The services within CCBC and DCC do not fully align but
there are similarities between each of the divisions. The financial information
presented attempts to align the services so that comparisons can be made.

One of the major differences between the financial information is that the accounting
treatment for year end balances differs between both authorities. In CCBC any year
end surplus is reported to the Chief Finance Officer, and if the department knows of a
specific future budget pressure then it can request that the surplus is kept as an
earmarked reserve. The request for the earmarked reserve then goes through the
democratic process for approval. The Chief Finance Officer reviews the earmarked
reserves throughout the year. In DCC any year end surplus is reported to the Chief
Finance Officer and requested to be carried forward within the revenue accounts.
The request goes through the democratic process and if the carried forward balance
is agreed, the Head of Service and Operations Manager will decide where best to
utilise the surplus.

In financial year 2011/12, Denbighshire’s Highways and Infrastructure Service ended
the year with an underspend of £222k, and Conwy with.an overspend of 105k.

Denbighshire County Council Table 1
Summary Budget Actual Variance
Employee 5,898,366 5,810,844 (87,522)
Premises 448,647 530,579 81,932
Transport 4,521,469 4,714,695 193,226
Supplies and Services 2,432,015 2,382,803 (49,212)
Third Party Payments 2,816,153 2,965,341 149,188
Transfer Payments 200,656 192,081 (8,575)
Support Services 11,455 11,056 (399)
Works 4,227,009 4,401,409 174,400
Total Expenditure 20,555,770 21,008,808 453,038
Bal B/Fwd (198,500) (198,500)
Fees & Charges (2,088,494) (2,477,478) (388,984)
Grant Income (2,169,705) (2,333,172) (163,467)
Recharges (5,637,081) (5,560,870) 76,211
Total Income (9,895,280) (10,570,021) (674,741)
Net Total 10,660,490 10,438,787 (221,703)

Tudalen d 6




Conwy County Council Table 2

Summary Budget Actual Variance

Employee 6,338,129 6,045,307 (292,822)
Premises 334,066 311,974 (22,092)
Transport 912,693 552,303 (360,390)
Supplies and Services 2,898,202 2,468,318 (429,885)
Third Party Payments 3,753,827 4,105,376 351,549
Below the Line 0 40,976 40,976
Works 5,053,397 4,936,110 (117,287)
Total Expenditure 19,290,314 18,460,363 (829,951)
Other Income (7,658,406) (6,624 ,841) 1,033,565
Grant Income (517,840) (616,548) (98,708)
Total Income (8,176,246) (7,241,390) 934,856
Net Total 11,114,068 11,218,973 104,905

3.3 Collaboration Savings (outside of this project)

The following summary details the collaboration savings to date that have been
reported by the Head of Service to each LA.

Please note that the Project Team has not investigated these savings and they are
therefore taken as provided for this report.

Based on the information received for the 2010/11 and 2011/12 financial years, DCC
has declared collaboration savings. in the region of £25k, and CCBC £168k. Both
LAs are aiming to make further collaboration savings (not directly attributed to this
project) for 2012/13 of £65k in DCC and £35k in CCBC.

This is an expected total reported ‘cashable savings’ from collaboration (not directly
attributed to this project) of £293k across both Authorities.

Table 3
Collaboration Savings to date (excluding those within the integrated staff structure)

Authority Saving Initiatives 2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 Total
£000 £000 £000 £000

DCC Parking Cash Collection Review 0 15 0 15
DCC Winter Maintenance (Review of Gritting Routes etc) 0 10 65 75
DCC Total 0 25 65 90
CCBC Street Lighting (Electrician & Vehicle) 39 39 0 78
CCBC Street Lighting (Technician & Vehicle) 0 38 0 38
CCBC Parking Cash Collection Review 0 52 0 52
CCBC Winter Maintenance (Review of Gritting Routes) 0 0 35 35
CCBC Total 39 129 35 203
Total for both DCC & CCBC 39 154 100 293
Note 2012/13 savings are yet to be realised P-I;é_é C91§|7esn 17




4. Shared Vision for a Conwy & Denbighshire Integrated
Highways & Infrastructure Service

The Joint Vision was developed as part of the April Visioning Workshop with
Highways & Infrastructure Managers and support staff from across Conwy and
Denbighshire, and was subsequently consulted upon with unions and all Highways
and Infrastructure staff.

Conwy and Denbighshire Local Authorities will aspire to deliver the following
outcomes:

Outcome 1 - Residents and visitors to Conwy and Denbighshire have
access to a safe and well managed road network

Outcome 2 - Properties in Denbighshire will have a reduced risk of
flooding

Outcome 3 - Residents and visitors to Conwy and Denbighshire have
access to high quality maritime facilities and.a well managed
natural environment

Outcome 4 - The Highways and Infrastructure Service is efficient and well
managed

When established, the Conwy and Denbighshire Highways and Infrastructure Service
will increase the pace of meeting the aspirations that:

Our customers will feel:

= Dbetter informed,;

= that they can travel with less disruption;
« safer;

= they have access to high.quality highways, footways, cycle ways and parking across
the two counties; and

= they get an excellent service at a reasonable cost.

Our staff will feel:

= involved,

= supported; and

= motivated to become one of the top quartile performers in Wales.

Our Local Authorities will feel proud that they are delivering a service that is:
= customer focussed;

= high performing;

= modern; and

= striving for continuous improvement.

Tudedem &8



5.
5.1

Governance Model

Governance Option Appraisal

In October 2011, work was carried out by Legal colleagues in both Conwy (CCBC)
and Denbighshire (DCC) to ascertain the most appropriate governance
arrangements for a Highways and Infrastructure integrated joint service. Five models
of integration were explored:

Option Model

1 Host Authority — Secondment

2 Host Authority — Delegation

3 Contract for Services — Commercial

4 New Organisation — Corporate Model

5 Mix of employment — Collaborative Model

In order to establish which model is the most appropriate, an option-appraisal
exercise was developed and carried out with each model.being assessed against ten

criteria:

These

The pace/complexity at which we would beable to achieve equal pay and
conditions for the staff of the integrated service

The impact of the model on the loyaltyof the ‘employee and how they view
their employer

The balance of risk between thetwo councils
The complexity of the governance arrangements

The return on investment/or the cost of the model including further
maintenance costs of.the chosen approach

The impact and benefit for other services including whether the model would
be adaptable for other services

Perception of influence
Impact on service delivery and savings targets

The ability of the model to allow agility and responsiveness in service delivery
and a culture of creativity and innovation

Stakeholder acceptability

criteria were independently weighted by the Conwy and Denbighshire

Collaboration/ Board, before the option appraisal was undertaken with Council
Members.

The findings of the option appraisal were presented in the December 2011 ‘Report on
the Development of a Fully Integrated Service’. Recommendation 2 of that report

states:

‘The option appraisal has demonstrated that the preferred model of
integration is Option 2 Host Authority — Delegation, it is therefore this
option which is recommended to both councils as the model which should be
adopted for the full integration of Highways and Infrastructure services for
Conwy and Denbighshire.’

Under formal Project Management arrangements from April 2012, the development
of the draft Service Design has proceeded in keeping with this recommendation.

Pigeidalen 19



Under this model, one authority will delegate its function to the other who will then act
as the Host Authority.

The governance will be undertaken though a Joint Committee which would be set up
by, and have equal representation from both authorities. This will manage and
regulate the collaboration.

Each Cabinet will delegate specific functions to the Joint Committee, which will have
the powers for the strategic management of the service. It will then delegate the day
to day activity to the Head of Service.

The Host Authority will employ the staff, with a formal arrangement between the
authorities to cover the costs. Funds and the staff will be transferred to the Host
Authority.

The Joint Committee, which acts as a sub-committee of a Local Authority, will be
scrutinised by both authorities until the Local Government measure changes to allow
joint scrutiny.

This will allow for the provision of services to other public‘bodies, but not the private
sector.

Fig. 1

HOST AUTHORITY OTHER AUTHORITY
Delegation of functions Delegation.of functions

» | Joint Committee

Employ staff
» | &enter contracts

CCBC and/DCC Legal Officers have prepared a draft Terms of Reference for the
Joint Committee, which will receive further consideration if the project continues to
the FullBusiness Case(FBC) stage.

5.2 Identifying a Host Authority

In April 2012, the H&I Collaboration Programme Board resolved that the decision on
a Host Authority will not take place until after a FBC has been adopted by both CCBC
and DCC Authorities.

In order to formalise the process for agreeing the Host Authority, and to confirm the
Local Authorities’ commitment to the role, it is recommended that at the appropriate
time, all applicants (Local Authorities) complete and submit the ‘Host Authority
Application Form’ (template available).

The process requires the interested party to answer five key questions:

1. Why do you think your organisation should be chosen to host the JH&I
Service? (no more than 500 words).

2. Please describe the arrangements that you would have in place to host this
Service (no more than 500 words).

Tudedem 2@



3. What regional collaborative projects is your authority currently hosting for
services within other departments of your authority?

4. Please state whether your authority has any major inspections due during the
key implementation phase for the JH&l Service, i.e. between [date] and
[date].

5. Please include your projected annual costs for the following if you were
hosting the JH&I Service (costs are related to the delivery of the service
areas, and the necessary support functions)

The application requires agreement (signature) from the Chief Executive, S151
Officer, Head of Legal, Head of HR and Head of IT.

Following submission, all applications will be considered by the Conwy &

Denbighshire Collaboration Board, who will make a recommendation to the Cabinets
in both CCBC and DCC Authorities.

Pieidalen 21



6. Conwy & Denbighshire Integrated (Draft) Service Design
6.1 Developing the Draft Service Design

In April 2012, work began to map out the functions that were currently being
delivered in the sub-service areas within both Conwy (CCBC) and Denbighshire
(DCC), including information relating to; workforce, accommodation, and ICT. The
JH&I Project Team analysed the functions data, isolating the sub-services areas that
don’t align, and then working to match the functions across the two authorities where
sub-service areas do align.

In July 2012, a Service Design Workshop was held with the Conwy and Denbighshire
Highways and Infrastructure Management Team to consider the Service Design
focusing on; (i) the Service Structure for the joint service (including the arrangement
of the sub-service areas), (ii) the functions that will be delivered by the sub-service
areas, and (iii) the opportunities to deliver a better service through the re-structuring.

Over the course of a full day, the attendees were asked to:
= review the current structure and functions;

= transfer the functions to the sub-service areas under the existing proposed
Service Structure (as set out in the December 2011 report' to Cabinets),
considering (i) are the functions under the appropriate/best sub-service area,
and (ii) are the sub-service areas under the appropriate/best Service Area;
and

= consider the opportunities for a better service (revisiting the above activity as
required).

The CCBC and DCC Highways and_Infrastructure Portfolio Members were invited to
join the workshop at the end of the day to review'the draft Service Design and make
any recommendations.

The exercise enabled the Senior H& Management Team to deconstruct the existing
service structures in the two\authorities. This provided an opportunity to rebuild a
revised structure and’ consider connections between sub-service areas, addressing
any weaknesses in the current structure.

A second workshop. was then held that same week with the Sub-service Managers
from across both Conwy and Denbighshire to consult on the draft Service Design as
developed by the Senior H&l Management Team. Following a briefing on the
general project approach and a rationale for the revised Service Structure, the group
was' asked to consider; what they think will work, what they think will not work, and
what could work with some changes.

The group were given the opportunity to provide further feedback over the course of
the following week, which was logged and used to inform the design.

6.1.2 Sharing the Draft Service Design

The draft service design and the detail of where the functions would be delivered
within the new joint service structure was shared with staff, council Members and
union representatives across both Authorities through the project Newsletter (see
Appendix 2).

Tudedemn: 227



6.2

Draft Service Design

Joint Conwy and Denbighshire

Highways and Infrastructure Proposed New Service Structure
[this &5 nat intended to be a Management S tructire)

e

Parking Penalty

Processes

Asset Business, Quality
Management and Customer
Managemant

ec ﬂ;l“v’pnl

DRAFT

Mainterance

Street Lighting *

|

Highways
Warls Unit

dewd Sub-service Areas — may be delivering within H&J Service in one authority, but under 2 different service (e.g. Environmental Services) in the other

Refers to where there is already a joint Sub-senvice Ares Manager
L Financeis currently a Sub-service Area within the H&I Service in CCBC, and part of the Comporate Finance Team in DCC
2 Fleet Management & Maintenanceis currently a Sub-service Lrea within the H&T Service in DCC, and within the Environmental Service in CCBC

3 Emergency Planningis currently a Sub-service Arca within the H& Service in DCC, and within the Comporate Gril Contingencies Uinit in CCBC (although 2 responsible officer has

been identified within Conwy H&I — namely the Service Improvement Manager)

4 Countryside Services is currently a Sub-service &rea within the H&I Service in CCBC, and within the Environmental Service in DCC
5 Flopd & Coastal Protectionis currently a Sub-service Area within the H&I Service in DCC, and within the Environmental Service in CCBC
& Public Transportis currently a Sub-service Area within the H&I Service in DCC, and within the Community Development Service in Comwy

Page 15 of 73

Fig. 2

HNon Aligned Services by
LA and Service Area

(i |

==
==

=

NN



6.3 Rationale for Change

The following rationale from the Highways and Infrastructure Joint Head of Service
for Conwy and Denbighshire sets out the reasoning behind, and the expected
improvements from, the changes to the current structure through a fully integrated
approach (linked to Appendix 2).

(a) Business Development

Asset Management has been brought into the core of the service to:
= ensure the most effective deployment of resources and drive the decision
making across the service;
= determine the activities across many parts of the service; and
= ensure the principles of whole life cost are utilised to best effect.

The combined team will have a greater capacity to support the development of asset
management, which will include the deployment of handheld technology and more
efficient paperless systems.

Centralising the management of 3rd Party Claims and Recharges will:
= ensure we have clear, effective management of the processes;
= enable robust approaches for defence of claims and recovery of money
against 3rd Parties; and
= ensure that weaknesses are monitored -and procedures and policies are
revised where weaknesses are identified, helping to maximise cost recovery
and minimise exposure to claims.

Quality and Health & Safety approaches will be strengthened from a central
management at the core of the service, which will:
= ensure that we have consistently robust processes for the whole service; and
= minimise duplication.

Customer Management is a priority for both authorities. The new structure provides
an opportunity to strengthen our customer management approaches through better
communication and information management. By combining the staff and bringing
together the best practices of both authorities, the integrated service will be able to
develop one consistent approach for customer standards and management. Best
practice needs to be at the core of the service and will be driven and overseen from
this team.

The proposal is for a Quality and Innovation Manager post to be created, which
would harvest best practice from the public and private sector. This is a really
important element of establishing the new service to ensure that there is a culture of
continuous improvement and challenge.

The Parking Penalty process is a discrete process being provided for a number of
authorities, and it needs to be managed as a business to ensure that partnership
working is maintained and developed.

(b) Coastal and Countryside Service

There are procurement advantages from a combined Harbour Management and
Maritime Service in terms of combined contracts e.g. dredging and maintenance of
moorings. A combined service would encourage sKkill sharing across both authorities,
as well as greater resilience of the service. This provides significant benefits with the
development and management of coastal and harbour facilities. An example of this
is the development of Foryd Harbour, which is on the border of the authorities and
benefits the economies of both.

Tudedem 247



Common licensing and charging approaches have already been developed to
provide consistency for maritime users. The opportunity is to continue to develop
single policies and procedures for the whole service.

(c) Major Projects and Bridges

Establishing a single ‘consultancy’ team will enable much greater knowledge and
sharing of expertise, which will:

= strengthen our capability, capacity and control to manage capital projects for
the authority and external clients;

= strengthen the intelligent client capability for both authorities;

»= ensure a continued service with local knowledge for the delivery of schemes,
and pride and passion for the staff who live and work in the areas they are
improving; and

= realise opportunities to deliver a greater level of work on the trunk roads
through establishing a single team and recruiting to the appropriate level.

The main client NMWTRA are keen to reduce the number of contact points.and are
promoting consistent practices from authorities.

(d) Passenger Transport

A fully integrated Passenger Transport team provides greater capacity to deal with
the peak periods experienced in home to school transport.

Service resilience and succession planning is cruciakhin this area as the service is
specialised, and service failure would be catastrophic.: This was highlighted with the
departure of the two key officers from Conwy, which led to the collaboration of the
Service across CCBC and DCC.

A combined team ensures that:
= robust, frequent and transparent tendering processes are undertaken to
ensure best value and-maintain a good supplier base; and
= we have a clear direction and clear priorities on our transportation policy,
which gives us a strong voice in TAITH and in national transport forums.

(e) Streetworks <and Parking: Management (and Highway Development
Control)

A combined Parking Management team would:

» increase:the level of support and direction which could be provided to the
teams;

= provide flexibility in the deployment of staff to tackle problem areas, and
support. major events and other peaks in workload;

= strengthen the skill and knowledge so that we optimise network
improvements from developments, whilst minimising the negative impacts;
and

= strengthen the resilience and succession planning.

Streetworks is a vital area of activity to protect traffic flows and minimise future
maintenance liabilities. We have already experienced benefits from knowledge
sharing between the teams in both authorities and the proposals would take this a
stage further.

A combined Streetworks team would have increased capability and capacity to
develop effective strategies for events management.

Pieidalen 25



(f) Highway Safety and Improvement

The traffic teams of both authorities are under significant pressure due to the high
number of customer requests, and there is a very clear opportunity to combine the
teams and processes to improve capacity and capability.

The Accident Investigation & Road Safety work undertaken in both authorities has
significant synergies and there is already collaboration which has significantly
reduced duplication. There is also some exploratory work being carried out at a
regional level to look at collaboration in road safety, and this indicates a sub-regional
pairing for delivery of road safety functions. Accident investigation is a specialised
activity which is carried out by small teams in both authorities. A combined team
would have greater capacity and capability to develop this important area of work.

The current capacity of managers makes it difficult to give sufficient focus to the
transport policy function in both authorities. The structure proposals.are designed to
give more capacity to the development of thinking in terms of transport needs. This
will enable the service to respond strongly to the regional and. national transport
agenda through TAITH. This would ensure that the potential for external funding
sources are optimised to tackle the priorities of both authorities.

(9) Network Maintenance and Street Lighting

The joint service in Street Lighting has been very.successful in reducing the overall
staffing levels, whilst undertaking a greater volume of work. Benefits and
improvements already realised include:
= the teams are involved with a wider variety of work which was previously
carried out by external consultants and, contractors;
» the team has developed a three way contract (Conwy/Denbighshire/Areva
energy company) to reduce.costs on the connections to new lighting columns;
= the team are quoting forimore work and they will be undertaking additional
festive lighting schemes for other public sector clients; and
= the collaboration has enabled Conwy and Denbighshire to have combined
material specifications to harness economies - this is being further enhanced
with the development of an alllWales (and beyond) framework contract, which
is being driven by the Street Lighting (joint) Manager.

Collaboration within Network Maintenance is progressing:

= contracts.have been prepared and let jointly for a variety of maintenance
works providing better economies of scale and reducing the time and effort
required to produce tenders (one tender rather than two) - the opportunity is
to extend this activity with one team;

= reviewing the winter maintenance free running over the border has enabled a
reduction in the combined number of gritting routes from 23 to 21, whilst still
treating the same length of network. This reduces the number of gritting
vehicles (which cost in the regions of £75k each to purchase) and man hours
required to carry out winter maintenance;

= sharing best practices are reducing the costs of providing services e.g. the
need for double manning on gritting operations was reviewed as practices
differed between both authorities, this has reduced the cost of delivering the
service.

There are further collaborative opportunities to
= optimise the potential of shared plant, materials and labour across both
authorities and beyond (where appropriate);
= the current teams are investigating the possibility of a shared depot facility in
the South of the counties to replace the sub-standard facilities in
Cerrigydrudion and Corwen - this would enable us to share the investment

Tudedem 267



costs of developing depot facilities and a salt storage facility in this part of the
county;

= increase the services offered to NMWTRA from a larger joint team which
could help offset the cost of the labour, plant and equipment to the authorities.

Community Relationship role

Within the new structure there is an opportunity to develop a community relationship
role for each of the senior managers in the joint service. The role will act as a key
contact in areas for Members, community groups and community councils. It is
important that a strong area presence and knowledge is maintained and enhanced to
provide a high quality service. This is particularly important in the highway
maintenance and traffic activities, as they have a very high community interest. The
integration proposals will not dilute this area knowledge and presence.

6.3.1 Non-aligned Sub-Services

The project clearly identifies those sub-service areas that do not align across the
Highways and Infrastructure Services in both Conwy and Denbighshire, and are
therefore not in scope, as:

= Finance - currently a sub-service area within the H&l Service in CCBC, and
part of the Corporate Finance Team in DCC

= Fleet Management & Maintenance - currently a sub-service area within the
H&I Service in DCC, and within the Environmental Service in CCBC

=  Emergency Planning - currently a sub-service area within the H&l Service in
DCC, and within the Corporate Civil Contingencies Unit in CCBC (although a
responsible officer has been identified within Conwy H&l — namely the
Service Improvement Manager)

= Countryside Services - currently a sub-service area within the H&I Service in
CCBC, and within the’Environmental Service in DCC

= Flood & Coastal Protection - currently a sub-service area within the H&l
Service in DCC, and within the Environmental Service in CCBC

= Public Transport- currently a sub-service area within the H&l Service in DCC,
and within the . Community Development Service in Conwy

Due diligence will need.to be given to the impact of proceeding with a fully integrated
service. for the Full'Business Case. A decision will need to be taken as to whether
this activity would proceed under this project, or as interdependent project(s) for all or
each of these service areas.

Pieidalen 27



7.  Staffing the New (Draft) Service Structure

In July 2012, the Project Team met with the Senior H&l Management Team to
consider how the new Service Structure would need to be staffed to deliver a high
quality and cost effective service; that would both meet the project benefits and
deliver against the joint outcomes.

The current workforce in both Conwy (CCBC) and Denbighshire (DCC) was reflected
within the new service structure to allow a comparison to be made against the new
staffing requirements. This identified where there would need to be a reduction in
posts and where it would be necessary to invest in new posts. This analysis provides
the basis for the costs of staffing the new structure in 7.2 and 7.3 below.

7.1  Assumptions

The staff in-scope for this project are the office based staff working within the aligned
sub-service areas of Highways and Infrastructure for both CCBC and DCC. Grant
funded posts are not in scope.

In order to ensure a balance between providing enough_information to arrive at a
reasonable conclusion, and not spending an excessive amount of time and resources
at this draft design stage, the following assumptions. have been’ used with the
approval of both HR and Finance colleagues:

= Salaries are based on the top of the scale for current and new posts

= FTE salary is worked out as ‘salary x FTE’

= The salary for posts under the new structure are an average of the existing two
posts (where appropriate)(due to CCBC/DCC, differing grades and potential JE
impacts), including where the HOS:has specified a grade

= On-costs will be added at 30% to the final total salary costs (DCC is currently
30% and CCBC 28%)

= Grant funded posts are‘not in scope

= Posts within the new structure have not been through a Job Evaluation process,
therefore a JE contingency of 4% will be added to cost of the new service design

= A pay structure has not been agreed as it will be dependent on the appointment
of the Host Authority

= The sayings total\for staffing the new service design contains 2x administration
posts, which individual LAs have not yet realised, and are therefore not as a
direct result of collaboration

7.2 Impact on Existing Staff

The total number of (office based) FTEs included in this exercise is 184.78. Based
on the new Service Design, 18.59 FTE posts would be removed from the staffing
structure, and 9 new FTE posts would be created.

After removing vacant posts, posts in line for redundancy have been considered as a
match for the new posts (desk top exercise). This results in a possible 8.59 FTE
redundancies, just under 5% of the total staff included in this exercise.

The total value (with 30% on-costs) of the 18.59 posts removed is £626k, and the
new posts would cost £236k, resulting in a net saving of £390k (before consideration
of additional costs, see 7.3).

Tudedem 28



7.2.1 Redundancy Costs & Pensions Deficit
Redundancy Costs

In order to determine the estimated cost of the remaining 8.59 FTE redundancies, the
staff in-scope for each redundant post have been profiled for redundancy and
pension strain costs, with the highest total costs taken. The pensions strain
(different to the pensions deficit) is also known as the ‘earliness cost’ and may apply
to people over the age of 55 who are in the pension scheme and made redundant.
The calculation considers the employee’s age, length of service and salary to
produce the amount in pension costs that will need to be made by the authority to the
relevant Pension Scheme.

Anticipated redundancy costs are in the region of £334k, and will contribute to the
overall transitional costs detailed in Section 10 — Financial Model.

Pensions Deficit

A transfer of staff from one local authority to the other would give rise, where
applicable, to staff having to transfer local government pension membership from one
Fund to the other.

In early 2012, Finance Officers from both Conwy & Denbighshire met with an actuary
representing the Flintshire scheme (DCC employees).and the pension manager from
Gwynedd (CCBC employees). Assurance was provided that a transfer would not
create an additional cost. The issue is about the ‘accounting treatment of existing
deficits.

If a group of staff transfer from council A to council B, the existing pension deficit for
council A will not change. However, there would be.fewer employees contributing to
the deficit funding in council A. Council B on the other hand could have significantly
increased contributions as a result of the transfer and would, in effect, over-recover
employer’s costs (which include“an element of deficit funding).

The actuary advised that there would need to be an agreement between the councils
to ensure that neither council is better, or worse off as a result of the pension
transfer.

7.3  Cost of Staffing the New (Draft) Structure
A full breakdown of costs by Service and sub-service area is available in Appendix 3.

For the purpose of this financial analysis work, all contracted staff were included i.e.
School Escorts and Road Workers, with Relief School Escorts and School Crossing
Patrols excluded.

When taking into account (i) the savings from the posts removed, (ii) the cost of the
new posts, (iii) the additional costs associated with the Parking Penalty Process, and
(iv) the 4% grade differential to protect against JE claims and Host LA pay
differences - the anticipated annual staff cost savings are in the region of £3,700.

The following summary of staffing costs are based on the approach detailed at the
start of this section and will contribute to the overall running and transitional costs
detailed in Section 10 — Financial Model.

Pieidalen 29



Staffing the New Structure
Current Structure
Service/Sub-Service Area CCBC DCC

Sub-Totals pre on-costs £3 592,195 £3199 208
1 0On costs @30% £1077 559 £953 762
2 Totals £4,669,854 £4,158,970
3 Parking Penalty Processes & Parking

4 4% grade differential to protect against
potential JE claims & Host LA pay
differences

3 Total savings from the new structure

G Total costs of staffing the new structure

7 Total

Motes:

1 On-costs added at 30% to the final total salary costs (DCC is currently 30% and CCBC 23%)

2 Met saving (389 974) before additional costs

£6 457 535
£1,946 351
£8,434,189

3 Costs identified fram the impact of Comay joining the WPPP scheme

4 Mitigation against costs of staff transferring to the Host LA when factoring in JE

5 savings made through the removal of posts within the new structure

& Total cost of, new posts identified within the new service structure, Conwy joining the WPPP, and the 4% JE mitigation

7 Total balance is a saving of £3 637

Tudeder 3@

Mew Structure Mo, Posts

Removed
18.589

Mew Posts

|

Saving

(481 577)
(144 473)
(626,050)

(526 050)

(3,693)

Table 4

Cost

£181 557
£54 479
£236,076
45913

£357 365

£R22 357



8. Accommodation

The following three options were considered:
= Option 1: Re-location of Heath based office staff to the Caledfryn site

= Option 2: Retain Caledfyn and the Heath sites, reorganising the staff
according to Service / Sub-service Areas where
appropriate

= Option 3: Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn to be located in a building
formally used as office space (St Asaph Business Park)

8.1  Assumptions and Limitations
Assumptions are as follows:

A1.The option for a new build has been discounted on the grounds of affordability

A2.The option to move all staff from Caledfryn to the Heath has been discounted on
the grounds of capacity

A3.(Option 1) If the Heath is vacated, Conwy will utilise the building as. office space

A4.(Option 1) If non-H&l staff vacate Caledfryn, DCC will incur ‘running costs for
these staff at an alternative location

A5. (Option 2) Half the staff across the two sites (Heath and Caledfryn) will potentially
be subject to re-location

AB. (Options 1 & 3) Based on current staff figures a-floor area-of 1,880m? would be
required — potentially Caledfryn has 1,873m? and'the St Asaph site 1,395 m?.
Whilst in both cases the floor area is less than ‘the anticipate need, it is
recognised that the Heath site layout'is unsuitable for office accommodation with
areas of floor unable to be utilised due to'the shape of the rooms. As Caledfryn
and St Asaph are relatively new sites the floor wastage would be minimal
mitigating this concern.

A7.(Option 3) All staff will require desk space using their existing ICT equipment (see
also C1)

A8.(all Options) The associated ICT report on these three options will initial only
consider the costs of joining the services together using the existing hardware
and systems. Innovation, opportunities for flexible space utilisation through
improved technologies, and future proofing would require investment and will
therefore not be.a costed consideration for this report (it may be that this will be
considered in more.detail for the FBC) (see C3 and C6 below)

Considerations and Limitations are as follows:

C1.(Option 1) There needs to be a recognition that as a result of this option there
is a potential lost opportunity of releasing assets identified in the DCC Corporate
Accommodation Strategy - additional running costs of approximately £90,000pa,
Capital costs of £50,000 to get the building suitable for use, and a loss of capital
receipts in the region of £650,000

C2.(Option 2) It needs to be recognised that the intention to relocate small numbers
of staff to have full teams working from one site, invariably results in a larger
number of staff needing to be relocated (maybe within their current location) to
allow this to occur

C3.(Option 3) Without considering an innovative approach to ICT that would provide
opportunities for flexible space utilisation through improved technologies, the St
Asaph site would be restricted, with little room for expansion and restrictions with
regards to large equipment, storage, etc. An invested approach would aim for an
80% desk provision utilising new and mobile technologies, providing more flexible
use of the accommodation now and in the future

Pieidalen 31



C4.(Option 3) The St Asaph building could be let to another organisation during the
life of the project

C5.(Option 3) The St Asaph site is the only suitable location within Conwy and
Denbighshire that has the appropriate capacity and is along the A55 corridor

C6.(all Options) With the lack of initial investment to back an accommodation
solution for a fully integrated service, there is the danger that the building will
dictate the business need

C7. (all Options) Disturbance Costs — work has not begun profiling the disturbance
costs that may be incurred with the relocation of staff for each option. This work
would be required to ascertain these costs for the FBC e.g. in CCBC’s
Disturbance Policy, ‘CCBC will pay the difference between home to old
workplace, and home to new workplace (shortest route) less five miles per day.
Mileage will be paid at 20 pence per mile, and is subject to tax/NI deductions. It
will be paid for 2 years. Part-time staff will receive the allowance on a pro-rata
basis, depending on the number of home/work trips made’

8.2 Option Appraisal
The purpose of the accommodation option appraisal is to consider the options in
relation to the location of office based staff within a Joint. Conwy and Denbighshire
Highways & Infrastructure Service.
The following stakeholders were involved in this option appraisal:

= JH&I Project Team

= Property and Asset Management Officers from both Conwy & Denbighshire

= Conwy & Denbighshire Collaboration Officers.Group

* Quality Assurance Team 1

= Project Sponsors

The Option Appraisal template is a recognised approach of the WLGA, having been
tested for use within the public'sector.

The Option Appraisal is\split into two key areas, non-financial benefits and costs.
The non-financial benefits  criteria measures against; the majority of the project
benefits, thesimpact on H&l and whole authority service delivery, and the likelihood of
the option receiving staff and political buy in.

The exercise of weighting the criteria was undertaken by the Project Sponsors.

To assist with the exercise, considerations were detailed against the non-financial
benefits which include the aforementioned considerations and limitations.

The following sequence of activities was undertaken:

= the initial draft was developed by the JH&l Project Team and Conwy &
Denbighshire Property & Asset Management Officer, including identifying
transitional and running costs against each option;

» the draft was then shared for comment with the Conwy & Denbighshire
Collaboration Officers Group;

» the Quality Assurance Team (QAT) were asked to score the options against
the non-financial benefits;

= the Project sponsors were asked to score the options against the non-
financial benefits (without seeing the scores assigned by the QAT);

Tudeder: 32



= the average of the two scores were taken and multiplied by the weightings.

The results against the non-financial benefits were:

Table 5
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Re-location of Heath Retain Caledfyn and Staff from the Heath
based office staff to the the Heath sites, and Caledfryn to be
Caledfryn site reorganising the staff located in a building
according to Service / formally used as
Sub-service Areas office space (St
where appropriate Asaph Business
Park)
Totals (weighted
score) 270 265 280

A copy of the full option appraisal is available in Appendix 4.

8.3 Accommodation Costs

Year 1 includes the transitional costs. All costs will~contribute to the overall
transitional and running costs detailed in Section 10 —Financial Model.

Table 6

Accommodation Option 1: Relocation of Heath based staff to the Caledfryn site
Accommuodation Option 2: Retain Caledfryn & Heath sites, reorganising the staff according to Service £ Sub-service areas where appropriate
Accommodation Option 3: Staff from the Heath & Caledfryn to be relocated in a building formally used as office space (St Asaph business Park)

Option1 Option 2 Option 3
1 Disturbance Costs £ a £
2 Transitional Costs {one off) £250,000 £100,000 £200,000
3 Lease Costs (per annurm) £ £ £105,000
4 Running Costs (per annurm) £155,000 £243,777 £30,000
5 Corporate Costs (per annum) Year 1 - £109,500 £0 Year 1 - £174,500
Yfear 2 - £117,250 Year 2 - £182,230
& Additional Cost of the Option £270,723 (Year 1) £100,000 (Year 1) £315,723 (Year 1)
£28,473 (Year 2) £0 (Year 2) £123,473 (Year 2)

Motes:

Staff profiling wark would be required to ascertain these costs for the FEC

Option 1: 100 Heath staff to Caledfryn & 150 non-Hé&l DCC staff relocation (at £1,000 pp)

Option 2: based on apx. 100 staff transferring (at £1,000 pp)

Option 3: all 200 Heath and Caledfryn staff to St Asaph (at £1,000 pp)

Lease costs far a building of similar size and structure to the St Asaph site

Option 1: Running Costs for Caledfryn

Cption 2 Running Costs for Caledfryn £155,000 and the Heath £85 777

Cption 3 Running costs based on a building similar in size and construction

Option 1: Heath Mathballed (£19 5000 in yr 1 and £27 250 yr 2) & re-located DCC staff funded from the released portion of rent from Caledfryn
Option 3: Heath Mathballed (£19,5000 in yr 1 and £27 250 yr 2) & other DCC staff would be moved into Caledfryn

Cornpared against the current running costs at the Caledfryn and Heath at £243777 (Caledfryn £155,000 and the Heath £83 777)

Option 1 - if we consider year two, the cost of the option is as per the current costs,
plus the additional £90,000 DCC costs, off-set by the CCBC contribution of £61,527
(current costs of £88,777 minus the mothballing cost of £27,250). In year one, we
incur additional transitional costs, however the cost of mothballing the Heath in that
first year are reduced.

Option 2 - costs remains the same with just the additional transitional costs required
in Year 1

Pieigkalen 33



Option 3 — if we consider year two costs, the cost of the option is the additional new
building at £185,000 (£105,000 lease costs plus the £80,000 running costs of the
new site) less the CCBC contribution of £61,527 (current costs of £88,777 minus the
mothballing cost of £27,250). In year one, we incur additional transitional costs,
however the cost of mothballing the Heath in that first year are reduced.

8.4 Conclusions to the Option Appraisal Table 7
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Re-location of Heath Retain Caledfyn and Staff from the Heath
based office staff to the the Heath sites, and Caledfryn to be
Caledfryn site reorganising the staff located in a building
according to Service / formally used as
Sub-service Areas office space (St
where appropriate Asaph Business
Park)
Totals (weighted
score) 270 265 280
Additional Costs £270,723 £100,000 £315,723
Year 1
Additional Costs
Year 2 (onwards) £28,473 £0 £123,473

8.4.1 Overall it was felt that having the staff located in-one site (Options 1 & 3),
was most likely to realise the benefits of:
= jncreased customer satisfaction;
= the whole service being recognised as a high performing service;
= improved development and career opportunities for new and existing
employees; and
* increased flexibility in and efficient use of limited resources.

It was concluded that cultural alignment is a key factor in ensuring that an integrated
service can deliver its benefits, and this is most likely to be achieved from having the
staff in one location.. Risks associated with a single location appearing more remote
for customers, can.be mitigated by developing a high quality Customer Services
Strategy, and implementing new ways of working to monitor and improve, the
tracking and accuracy Jof, and response to, customer enquiries. Teams working
within-one " location. will have more opportunities to develop and maintain best
practices and common, consistent working approaches. All options should provide
better opportunities for skill sharing and staff development, and it was felt that this
would be realised more fully by having staff in one single location. However it was
recognised that a single location may restrict the viability of opportunities for some
staff due to greater journey times and distances.

When considering the benefits of:
= minor disruption to the delivery of the Highways and Infrastructure Service
(inc. employees); and
= minor disruption to the delivery of other council services (inc. employees),

the scoring reflects the views that whilst there is likely to be an initial negative impact
on service delivery with all options, the whole service move required for Option 3
will result in the most disruption.

Option 2, was considered most likely to receive political and staff buy-in
(including overcoming staff opposition), as not all staff would be required to move
location, and both authorities would retain a main based within their County.

Tudeders 34




9. ICT

Conwy and Denbighshire ICT departments produced two joint reports for the Conwy
and Denbighshire Officer Group (CDOG) in July 2011 and November 2011 outlining
proposals and estimated costs for IT service delivery to the integrated service.
Further to these reports, CDOG have requested more detail on the current and
estimated future costs for ICT systems and applications utilised by the service.

This report provides an update of the estimated additional Capital and Revenue costs
required to support existing systems under the following options:

= Option 1 - Re-location of Heath based staff to the Caledfryn site

= Option 2 - Retain Caledfryn and the Heath sites, reorganising the staff
according to Service / Sub-service Areas where appropriate

= Option 3 - Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn to be located in a building
formally used as office space (St Asaph Business Park)

9.1 Assumptions and Limitations

It must be noted, that

(i) the following costs are in addition to the‘existing costs of the
delivery of IT services to the current H&I services, and
(i) the transitional and additional running costs are in the main

attributed to the transfer of staff, ICT systems and Infrastructure to
a Host LA, rather than the physical relocation.

General Assumptions:

1. Capital and revenue costs for the implementation of completely new systems or
technologies aimed at delivering transformation and efficiencies within the Joint
Integrated Highways Service (e.g. EDRMS, Sharepoint, IPADs) cannot be
included in this report without a clear specification of Service requirements.
However, there may be.opportunities for efficiencies through investment in these
technologies but they-are out of scope for this project. Additional capacity for new
work would be costed separately.

2. Where possible staff will move their existing pc/laptop/tablet/printer and telephony
hardware/software licenses in to the new integrated service. The hardware is of
an appropriate specification and condition to be supported in the new joint
service.

3. The cost to migrate data and licenses will need to be investigated with the
individual application owners once the decision has been made regarding which
applications will be used by the joint H&l service and which of the LAs will act as
the host.(See Appendix 3). Without this information at a specific application level
it is difficult to make an assumption on any savings or additional costs that may
be incurred in relation to systems usage. Additional hardware and specialist
consultancy charges are also likely to be incurred to accommodate any systems
migrations from one authority to another.

4. The systems used by both DCC and CCBC are detailed the joint ICT report
(Appendix 5).

5. The 200 Highways and Infrastructure (H&l) staff number is apportioned on a
50/50 ratio with 100 staff currently CCBC employees and 100 currently DCC
employees. Therefore, each ICT service will be taking on an additional 100 staff
to support.

Pieidalen 35



9.2

The merger of existing systems or implementation of replacements for the Joint
Highways and Infrastructure Service will carry a substantial additional overhead
on both ICT Services as the migration work is undertaken and consequential
network or server infrastructure improvements are introduced. Consultancy costs
from existing and new ICT providers are likely to be high but Conwy and
Denbighshire can provide specialists in technology areas such as Networks,
Telephony, Virtualisation, SAN, Citrix, AD, SQL, Desktops and Security to help
limit the requirement for external expertise.

An estimated additional cost of £75k has been put forward as a reasonable,
‘transitional’ charge to allow a contribution towards resourcing the extensive
additional workloads brought about in managing this merger for the hosting ICT
service. Resource could not be freed up from the non-hosting Council as officers
are not purely dedicated to Highways work and instead deliver IT support and
management services across the Council. This transitional fund should be put in
place for an initial period of 2 years with an agreement to review at the end of this
term.

Each ICT service will work in partnership to support transfer of skills"wherever
possible to enable officers in the host service«to support systems and
technologies operated by the integrated H&lI service. This will help alleviate some
of the demand and costs associated with training/3™ party consultancy.

Where systems are common across Conwy and Denbighshire, all licences
transfer at no additional cost.

ICT Costs

The following summary of additional’lCT costs will.contribute to the overall running
and transitional costs detailed in.Section 10 — Financial Model.

Table 8

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

Re-location of Heath Retain Caledfryn and the Heath

based staff to the

sites, reorganising the staff

Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn to
be located in a building formally used as

Caledfryn site according to Service / Sub-service | office space (St Asaph Business Park)
Areas where appropriate
Transitional Costs £211K £222k £272k
Annual Costs £61k £52k £72k

The table reflects the highest costs and is based on general ICT and (H&l and

Corporate) software specific costs.
software across the two LAs.

It excluded costs associated with common

It is important to note that where systems are common across Conwy and
Denbighshire, an assumption has been made that all licences will transfer at no
additional cost (see assumption 9 above) and therefore these are excluded from the
totals above and the full Financial Model. The total liability has the potential (worst
case scenario) to reach an additional estimated £292k in set up costs and £162k

annual costs.

A full breakdown of ICT costs is available in Appendix 5.

Tudede s 367




LE Uusepny

10.

Financial Model

It is not the intention to compare this financial model against the current H&l budgets. The purpose is to provide an indication of the potential
costs/savings to each council for integrating the service. Therefore, this model will include both service and corporate costs/savings.

It is also important to note that whilst on-costs at 30% have been added to the costs of staffing the new structure, this will not cover the full costs of
the Host LA providing support services. It is the assumption at this time that the host LA will charge no more than the costs currently incurred by
the delegating LA.

The following costs are additional revenue and transitions costs attributed to (i) staffing the new structure, (ii) accommodation options and (iii) ICT.

All aforementioned assumptions and limitations apply.

Additional Costs of the New Integrated Service Design

Accommodation Option 1: Relocation of Heath based staff to the Caledfryn site

* based on the assumption that all staff transfer and move accommodation in Year 1

Running Costs
Staffing the Structure
Parking Penalty Processes & Parking

1
2

ICT
Accommodation

4% JE Contingency
Total Additional Running Costs
Transitional Costs

Redundancy
ICT
Accommodation

Total Transitional Costs

Table 9
Accommodation Option 2: Retain Caledfryn & Heath sites, reorganising the staff according to Service / Sub-service areas where appropriate
Accommodation Option 3: Staff from the Heath & Caledfryn to be relocated in a building formally used as office space (St Asaph Business Park)
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Year1* | Year2 | Year3 Year1* | Year2 | Year3 Year1* | Year2 Year 3
(389,974) (389,974) (389,974) (389,974) (389,974) (389,974) (389.974) (389.974) (389,974)
£48,913 £38,913 £38,913 £48,913 £38,913 £38,913 £48,913 £38,913 £38,913
£61,000 £61,000 £61,000 £52,000 £52,000 £52,000 £72,000 £72,000 £72,000
£20,723 £28,473 £28,473 £0 £0 £0 £115,723 £123473 £123473
£337,368 £337,368 £337,368 £337,368 £337,368 £337,368 £337,368 £337,368 £337,368
£78,030 £75,780 £75,780 £48,307 £38,307 £38,307 £184,030 £181,780 £181,780
£334,263 £0 £0 £334,263 £0 £0 £334,263 £0 £0
£211,000 £0 £0 £222,000 £0 £0 £272,000 £0 £0
£250,000 £0 £0 £100,000 £0 £0 £200,000 £0 £0
£795,263 £0 £0 £656,263 £0 £0 £806,263 £0 £0
£873,293 £75,780 £75,780 £704,570 £38,307 £38,307 £990,293 £181,780 £181,780

Notes:

1 Net savings from staffing the new structure before additional costs are applied

Total Additional Costs

2 Year 1 includes one off joining fees of £10k
3 Total Transitional and Running Costs by year (excluding the Pensions Deficit estimate)

Page 29 of 77




10.1 Financial Analysis

It is the finding of this project that proceeding with an Integrated Highways and
Infrastructure Service across Conwy and Denbighshire will not deliver any cashable
savings in (at least) the first three years.

Option 1 - Relocation of Heath based staff to the Caledfryn site

Additional running cost are anticipated for the first year in the region of £78k,
reducing to an estimated £76k in years two and three. Transitional costs would be
required in the region of £800k.

Option 2 - Retain Caledfryn & Heath sites, reorganising the staff according
to Service / Sub-service areas where appropriate

As the least expensive option, additional running costs are anticipated for the first
three years in the region of £48k, reducing to an estimated £38k in«years two and
three. Transitional costs would be required in the region of £656k.

Option 3 - Retain Caledfryn & Heath sites, reorganising the staff according
to Service / Sub-service areas where appropriate

As the most expensive option, additional running costs‘are anticipated for the first
three years in the region of £184k, reducing to an estimated £182k in years two and
three. Transitional costs would be required in the region of £806k.

10.2 Potential for Future Savings

There are already aspects of the Highways and Infrastructure Service across Conwy
and Denbighshire that are collaborating with. a Joint Service Manager appointed;
namely Street Lighting and Passenger Transport.. Any savings realised from these
areas of integration over the last three years are set out as received from the Head of
Service in Section 3.3 of this report.

There may be potential for further savings through the integration of sub-service
areas in Phase two, however, it is.not the purpose of this report to identify the full
extent of any such benefits and potential savings — this work will be undertaken in
Phase 2 of the project.

What can be reported is that the expectation for sub-service full integration is in
meeting the'Project Benefits, rather than yielding significant financial savings. There
may be savings to be made by reviewing processes and procedures (e.g. tendering
for contracts), but we need to question if these can be achieved through ‘soft’
collaboration (sharing good practice), rather than being reliant on full integration. We
need to be ever mindful that financial savings through full integration are more
commonly and initially achieved through redundancies, which can have significant
transitional-costs attached.

10.3 Charging Methodologies

In October 2011, a H&I Integrated Service ‘Financial Implications’ report was
submitted to the Collaboration Officers Group which states:

“The distribution formula ought to be as straightforward as possible so it is easily
understood. Service level Indicator Based Assessments (IBAs) are an independent,
pre-existing proxy for need. They are a key element used to calculate SSA and
ultimately drive out the RSG formula. The basic components and proportions would
be as follows:

Tudedern 38



Table 10

Denbighshire Conwy Indicators
£000 £000

School Transport 3,192 3,602 | Population aged 3-15
Area

Road Maintenance 6,412 6,814 | Population
Weighted Road Length
Traffic Flow

Street Lighting 958 1,219 | Street Light Units

Public Transport 589 847 | Settlement Threshold
Population

Concessionary 367 451 | Population

Fares

Road Safety 197 318 | Urban Road Length
Population

Total IBA 11,715 13,251

% IBA Distribution 46.92% 53.08%

It would be preferable if the above could be used as the basis to apportion all savings
in future but it may transpire, as the service structure emerges, that a second tier
service level agreement may have to be devised if the IBA approach doesn’t lend
itself effectively to some areas. That said, to determine a mechanism that is more
detailed and therefore complicated, would probably involve a considerable effort and
achieve broadly the same result. It also means more discretion may have to be
introduced which may be subject to challenge politically. Therefore the IBA based
allocation should be the ‘norm’ with -other arrangements being exceptional. The
theory would dictate that as service areas are pooled and service delivery plans for
each council established, all net savings arising as a result of collaboration are
apportioned on the basis above, regardless of where the saving originated. This type
of formulaic distribution of -savings would have to be assessed over the entire
collaboration programme .and therefore over a three or four year period rather than
focussing on individual element in any one year.”

Pieidlalen 39



11. HR Model

It will be necessary to consult with unions on the process for managing the change
with staff (a number of meeting to consult on the project approach and the draft
service design have already taken place). It will also be necessary to agree a
detailed timetable for consultation, recruitment, redeployment, redundancy activity
with all employing organisations and the unions.

There have been a number of pieces of work already undertaken on the alignment of
culture and induction to a new organisation, which will form the basis of the HR
approach. In addition, further discussion is required to identify opportunities to align
culture and build the new team ethos within the service.

Key areas for consideration include:
= Responsiveness and Culture;

= Perceptions of influence including employer/employee perception to ensure a
unified approach to the delivery of a Joint Highways & Infrastructure Service; and

= Resourcing the HR issues so they do not excessively delay the implementation of
the new service.

A comprehensive review of existing job descriptions will have to be undertaken to
ensure that they are 'fit for purpose' and meet the requirements of the joint service. In
addition, a number of new job descriptions will be have to be developed, agreed and
evaluated to support the new roles within the‘proposed.structure.

11.1 TUPE Arrangements

Members of staff who are currently. engaged in delivering the Highways &
Infrastructure ‘in-scope’ functions through their individuals organisations, may have a
right to transfer to the new structure; which will'be providing that function on a shared
service basis. This transfer would be subject to TUPE regulations. Under these
regulations, members of staff will transfer with at least their existing statutory
employment rights and‘contractual entitlements.

Any resulting redundancies would be the responsibility of the host authority.

11.2 Salary-Ranges

Both Authorities use the"GLPC job evaluation scheme, however how this is applied
across-the two authorities does vary due to the development of local conventions.

Once a host, authority has been agreed, all future job evaluations should be
undertaken in‘accordance with the host authority evaluation schemes.

11.3 Policies & Procedures

A complete review of policies and procedural differences across the two authorities
will need to be undertaken. This will need to be carried out by the host authority to
ensure that correct policies, procedures and terms and conditions are applied to the
employee. There will also need to be a commitment by the new employer to agree a
pay, terms and conditions harmonisation strategy within 3-5yrs of the new structure
formation, in order to address any equal pay issues in line with legislation.

However for managing the transfer process, there needs to be a common process
and policies for:

= Redeployment (the process not entitlements such as pay protection);
= Applications for Premature retirements (the process not the entitlements);

Tudedere 4@



Job matching;

Recruitment and Selection to the new posts;

Redundancy Management (however in terms of redundancy entitlements the
employees current terms and conditions will apply and so consultation will not be
required on this aspect);

The Sickness Absence Policy; and

Flexi time arrangements.

Pieickalen 41



12. Risk Management

The process for identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring risk is an integral
part of project management. The continual identification and assessment of risk is
key to the successful delivery of our objectives.

The changing external environment and the decisions made in the course of
delivering the project, will continuously alter the status of risks identified and new
risks emerging. The risk assessment process should support this ongoing and
forward-looking identification and assessment of risk as part of the project.

The risk register for this project was developed during the Visioning Workshop (April
2012), in a session that looked at; ‘what could possibly go wrong?’ and ‘what is
already, or could act as a poison to prevent the collaboration reaching a successful
conclusion?’

The participants were asked to consider:

Internal factors e.g. the partners in the collaboration; shared.vision; direction
and momentum; management of stakeholders; appropriate consultation; of
commitment; key calendar dates etc

External factors e.g. Political, Economic, Sociological, Technological, Legal &
Environmental factors

Highways and Infrastructure staff were informed of therisk register in the May 2012
Newsletter and invited to share any risks throughout the duration of the project.

The Project Manager will actively manage project risks, and put in place a
mechanism to ensure those allocated responsibility for mitigating risks, are
proactively working to ensure the mitigation. In order to facilitate this, the owners of
risks are required to provide an update at regular intervals at the request of the
project manager. The Risk Registeris formally reviewed bi-monthly.

The full project risk register (as at July 2012) is attached as Appendix 6.

Tudeden: 427



13. Summary of Findings

Section 1 of this report states that one of the purposes of this document is to
‘consider if delivering a joint (fully integrated Conwy and Denbighshire Highways and
Infrastructure) service is likely to result in a better service that costs less’.

This report reviews the costs and benefits in relation to a new service design, under
three accommodation options:

=  Option 1: Re-location of Heath based office staff to the Caledfryn site

=  Option 2: Retain Caledfyn and the Heath sites, reorganising the staff
according to Service / Sub-Service Areas where
appropriate

= Option 3: Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn to be located in a building
formally used as office space (St Asaph Business Park)

The financial model in Section 10 uses the highest costs associated with:
* HR - staffing the new service, JE contingencies and redundancy (section 7);
= Accommodation — moving, lease, running and corporate costs (section 8);
and
= |CT - based on using the existing equipment and software (section 9);

Whilst it is not the purpose of this report to identify any savings at a sub-service level,
it is recognised that there may be savings to be made from integration further down
the structure (e.g. tendering for contracts, reviewing processes and working
practices), however, we need to question if these can be achieved through ‘soft’
collaboration (sharing good practice, partnerships), rather than being reliant on full
integration?

Table 11
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Year 1* Year 2 Year 3 Year 1* Year 2 Year 3 Year 1* Year2 Year 3
Total Additional Running Costs £78,030 £75,780 £75,780 £48,307 £38,307 £38,307 £184,030 £181,780 £181,780
Total Transitional Costs £795,263 £0 £0 £656,263 £0 £0 £806,263 £0 £0
Total Additional Costs| £873,293 £75,780 £75,780 £704,570 £38,307 £38,307 £990,293| £181,780 £181,780

It is the finding of this_report that full integration of the service, under any of
the above three'accommodation options, will require additional annual revenue
(cost more), and will incur significant transitional costs.

The/second question ‘will full integration between Conwy and Denbighshire result in
a better service?’ is more difficult to measure in the absence of robust working
examples. We can however, start by considering the expected improvements from
full integration outlined in this report (section 6.3), against the expected project
benefits.

Here we will again need to question if the following expected improvements can also
be achieved through ‘soft’ collaboration (sharing good practice, partnerships), rather
than being reliant on full integration?

Anticipated Project Benefits Expected Improvements

1 Increased customer By combining the staff and bringing together the best
satisfaction practices of both authorities, the integrated service will
be able to develop one consistent approach for customer
standards and management.

Within the new structure there is an opportunity to

Piceickalen 43




develop a ‘community relationship’ role for each of the
senior managers in the joint service. The role will act as
a key contact in areas for Members, community groups
and community councils. It is important that a strong
area presence and knowledge is maintained and
enhanced to provide a high quality service.

A fully integrated team provides greater capacity to deal
with the peak periods experienced by customers (e.g.
home to school transport).

The whole service is
recognised as a high
performing service

Through Asset Management being brought into the core
of the service (under Business Development), it will drive
the decision making across the service, and determine
the activities across many parts of the service.

The proposal is for a Quality and Innovation Manager
post to be created, which would harvest best practice
from the public and private sector. This is a really
important element of establishing the .new service'to
ensure that there is a culture of continuous.improvement
and challenge.

Across the whole service there will be consistently
robust processes and minimal duplication.

Combined teams will. ensure we have a clear direction
and clear priorities on our policies, which gives us a
strong voice in TAITH and in national transport forums.

Improved development and
career opportunities for new
and existing employees

There.will be better opportunities for skill sharing and
development, given the benefits that will arise by
combining both Authorities’ Highways knowledge and
skills.

Staff co-located in same service or sub-service teams,
will haveshared access to new opportunities.

Increased flexibility.in‘and
efficient use of limited
resources

Through Asset Management being brought into the core
of the service (under Business Development), it will
ensure the most effective deployment of resources, and
ensure principles of whole life cost are utilised to best
effect.

Economies of scale for procurement can be achieved
across the service by only needing to prepare tender
documents once, which requires less officer time and
effort. In addition, tenders which have a greater value of
work will often attract more competitive rates.

Across the service there will be extra capacity,
resilience, and flexibility to be able to; manage peaks in
workload; target problem areas, deal with staff changes
through absence and turnover, and strengthen
succession planning.

The combined teams will release capacity to develop
strategies that will meet regional and national agendas,
and ensure that the potential for external funding
sources are optimised.

There are opportunities to share the cost of developing
depot facilities, and increase the services offered to
NMWTRA from a larger joint team which could help
offset the cost of the labour, plant and equipment to the

Tudedeps 447




authorities.

More robust legal compliance

Centralising 3rd Party Claims and recharges will enable
robust approaches for defence of claims and recovery of
money against 3rd parties. It will ensure weaknesses
are monitored and procedures and policies revised,
helping to maximise cost recovery and minimise
exposure to claims.

Across the whole service there will be consistently
robust processes and minimal duplication.

Improved contribution to
strategic agendas

Combined teams would have increased capacity and
capability to direct resources to strategic priority areas,
and to develop strategies that will meet regional and
national agendas and ensure that the potential for
external funding sources are optimised to tackle the
priorities of both authorities.

Piceigtalen 45




Appendix 1

Joint Highways and Infrastructure Fully Integrated Service:
Project Governance Structure

* Representation across the two LAs from; Chief Executives, Corporate Directors, Council
Leaders, Portfolio holders, Scrutiny committees.
**Representation across operational and support services for Highways and Infrastructure in
Conwy and Denbighshire.

[

Conwy
Cabinet

)

Denbighshire

Cabinet }

Development Team 2:

Highways and Infrastructure Joint

Service Management Team:

Development Team 1:

Conwy and Denbighshire H&!
Collaboration Officer Group**

/Quality Assurance Team:

Highways and Infrastructure
Senior Management Team:
Stuart Davies

Mike Hitchings (Denbighshire)

Gwyn Hughes (Conwy)

Cabinets Portfolio Holders

\_

~

A

A

Project Board

Denbighshire and Conwy
Collaboration Board*

1

Project Lead

Stuart Davies, Head of Highways &
Infrastructure for Conwy & Denbighshire

A

/ Joint Highways and \

Infrastructure (JH&I)
Service Project Team

Project Manager:
Danielle Edwards (Conwy)

Project Co-ordinator:
Sian Owen (Project Manager in
Denbighshire)

Programme Manager:
Mike Graham (Programme
Manager, Highways and
Infrastructure Conwy and
Denbighshire)

HR Team Member:
Hilary Evans (HR Project Officer,
Denbighshire)

Finance Team Member:
Graham Williams (Principal
Accountant, Conwy)

)

Communications:
Paul Banholzer (Service
Improvement Manager Conwy)

Sue Hudson (Business & Quality

\Manager, Denbighshire)

Tudedens 467

The Project Team
will work with
Officers from both
the Support
Services and H&lI
Services to
deliver the project |

A

/




Appendix 2

Breakdown of Functions under the New Joint Service Structure

Where a function has been moved from one sub-service area to another, it will state ‘(Moved
from.....)"

Opportunities for a better service have also been included under the sub-service areas.

Aligned Sub-Service Areas

Service Area & Sub- | Functions
service Areas

Business Development

Business, Quality & = Performance Management, Risk Management, Business Planning, Crisis Mgt and

Customer Service Continuity

Management Collation of information relating to insurance claims against the Council

PA duties to HOS

Welsh Language, Equalities

Sustainability and Communications

Maintenance and improvement of the ISO 9001 Quality Management System

Service delivery improvements through the development of codes of practice

and standards

Web information and publications

Monitoring and Co-ordination of responses to Complaints and Queries

Full administrative support to whole service

Freedom of Information / Data Protection Issues

Premises Administration - Co-ordination of repairs and maintenance to building

Carrying out co-ordination duties to.ensure the quality and availability of ICT &

office equipment provision

=  (Moved from various sub-sections) Third party claims administration

= (Moved from various sub-sections) Liaison and management of third party
insurance claim defence

Opportunityl: Identify.innovation through development — a specific role
Opportunity2: Co-ordinate on Health and Safety across the service
Opportunity3:“Align, maintain and develop Quality Assurance across the Service
Opportunity4: Coordinate the Customer Relationship role (as part of each Service
Area Managers responsibility)

Opportunity5: Rechargeable works costs — Finance or Business function?

Asset Management = _Maintaining databases of Highways assets and inspections

=~ Keep and update the Register of highways together with the administration of
Local Land Searches

= Determine asset valuation data

= Manage the asset management system & PDA devices and support departmental
users

= Keep and update the Local Street Gazetteer (Conwy only)

= Procure and process highway condition data (UKPMS)

Opportunityl: Traffic data fed into asset management
Opportunity2: Potentially providing this service to other authorities (income
generation)

Parking Penalty =  Penalty Charge Notice (PCN) processing
Processes

Coastal & Countryside

Harbour Management = Management and operation of Foryd Harbour functions, including navigation,
(Conwy & Foryd) moorings, berthing, maintenance, inspections, issuing of moorings, navigational
& Maritime Service aids _ o _

=  Development of operating systems for Harbour and Maritime functions

= QOperation & Management of the Foryd Boat Park, boat lifting and movement
operations, collection of fees and charges, maintenance of equipment (in CCBC
and Harbour car parks)

Conwy Harbour

Rhos on Sea

Management of Slipways, Beaches, Foreshores

Beach Award applications

Public Rights of Way =  Rights of Way maintenance

Piceictalen 47



= Compliance with ROWIP

= Definitive map and public path orders

=  Enforcement

=  Facilitating the ‘Access Forum’ (statutory requirement)

Major Projects and Bridges

Major Projects

= (Moved from Bridges and Structures) Project Management of Regeneration led
construction projects

= Design, procurement, cost consultancy, construction management and CDM-C
services

=  Project management support for infrastructure and highways schemes, urban
regeneration, coastal works and transport related schemes

= Highways design Consultancy services for North and Mid Wales Trunk Road
Agent

=  Design function for highways and civil engineering projects county projects

Opportunityl: Section 278 Agreements — offer full package of design, tender, and
site supervision. Fees to be made. Must consider costs benefits and risks.
Opportunity2: Strong commercial focus resulting from combined Major Projects
functions.

Bridges & Structures

= Maintaining, replacing and providing new footbridges on Public Rights Of Way

=  Liaising with other highway bridge owners, such as Network Rail

= Dealing with CADW on works to highway structures designated as Ancient
Monuments or Listed buildings

=  Routine/cyclic maintenance and programmed works supervision for internal and
NMWTRA clients

= Undertaking General, Principal and Special Inspections and assessments for
internal and NWMTRA clients

= Implementation of the requirements of the Code of Practice for Highway
Structures

=  Managing proposals-by. statutory undertakers to lay apparatus (ducts, pipes, etc)
on or near highway structures

= Managing design consultants and /specialist consultants/ contractors (Preliminary
investigations, detailed design, preparation of contract documents and site
supervision) for Bridge Works

= Technical Approval of all new or altered structures on or adjacent to the highway
and-all'structures on or adjacent to highways to be adopted

= Writing briefs for the procurement of specialist consultants/contractors to carry
out Bridge Works

Opportunityl: Need County Bridges Manager and small team. Knowledge of assets
required.for quick response. Call on pool of engineers for design, principal
inspections.

Passenger Transport (inc. Public Transportation)

Education Transport
Service

= Administer school and college contracts for Conwy and Denbighshire
= Operate the DCC yellow school bus (DCC Only)

Public Transport
(Concessionary fares,
installation & repairs of

= Administer the free concessionary travel system for both Conwy & Denbighshire,
assessing eligibility, making payments to operators and producing travel passes
*  Produce and install roadside publicity for Denbighshire and install (only)for

; Conwy
:?\L;zri]g,lctiggs)’ timetable = Undertake bus service infrastructure installations and repairs for both Conwy &
Denbighshire
= Administer bus service contracts and agreements for Denbighshire (DCC Only)
= Rail policy liaison (DCC Only)
= Community TPT (DCC Only)
= Assess network for socially necessary bus services
Streetworks & Parking Management
Streetworks = (Moved from Bridges and Structures) Review and manage route notifications

from hauliers in respect of the movement of abnormal loads

= Assessment of proposals by statutory undertakers to carry out works to maintain
their assets on the highway

= Amending Statutory undertakers proposals (timings and locations of works)
using New roads and street works Act 1991

=  Undertaking Network Management duty, relating to the Traffic Management Act

Tudedem 48




2004

Maintain and up keep of the Street works register

Co-ordinate all works on the highway

Fixed penalty notices as permitted under legislation

Temporary traffic orders on the highway

Inspections of works on the Highway, issuing defects notices as set out in New
roads and street works Act 1991 as required

Licence activities on the highway

Approval and inspection of temporary traffic management

Management of events on the Highway

Licence Skips, Scaffolds/Hoardings, containers and cherry pickers on the
highway

To provide all of the street Works functions above to NMWTRA . with the
exception of Temporary Traffic orders

Parking

Management of Marine Drive (CCBC Only)

Civil parking enforcement

Car park management, cash collection

Car park permit issue/control (e.g. residential schemes)

Penalty charge notice processing (deals with most aspects of the processing of
PCNs up to the traffic penalty tribunal stage)- elements relating to write-offs and
debt recovery

Highways Safety & Improvement

Traffic / Engineering
Policy (TAITH e.g.
walking, cycling)

General highways infrastructure improvements to increase traffic flow and
capacity

Representation at TAITH Regional Transport Consortium

Traffic Regulation and Control.- Speed limits, one way streets, parking
restrictions etc

Safer Routes in Communities initiative

Collection and analysis of traffic data. - traffic flows, traffic speeds and accident
data

Transport planning - forward planning of improvements to the highway network
Design, procurement and installation of road safety engineering measures
Infrastructure provision to assist pedestrians

Investigation and provision of cycling facilities

Function of being involved in all aspects of 'Aids to Movement' incorporating
provision of road signing, road markings and the management of traffic
movements through traffic regulation orders

Management, inspection and maintenance of traffic signal installations* (*DCC
ONLY)

(Moved from Street Lighting) New traffic signals

Creation of new cycle routes

Accident Investigation
& Road Safety

Running the School Crossing Patrol Service
Road safety education, training and publicity

Road traffic accident investigation and remedial schemes
Informal traffic safety inspections

Road safety audit

Informal safety checks (small schemes)

Highway Development
Control

Review pre-Planning and Planning applications that will have an affect on the
highway network or individual portions of it, recommending alterations or
acceptance of developers' proposals

Contributing to the Local Development Plan

(Moved from Streetworks) Private street works code administration, private
streets urgent repairs, advanced payment code, observations on development
proposals

Network Maintenance & Street Lighting

Highway Maintenance

Undertake routine and detailed safety inspections to provide statutory defence
under Section 41 Highways Act 1980

(C) Complaints investigation - Public, Town & Community Councils, Elected
Members MP's & AM's

Enforcement issues under Highways Act 1980 - Service of notices under
appropriate legislation

Pieidalen 49




Supervision of Planned, Reactive and Cyclic maintenance works in accordance
with Code of Practice

Winter Maintenance function and extended ARGY contractors

Maintenance of cycle routes (DCC Only, ETS in Conwy)

(Moved from Streetworks) Both Section 38 and Section 278 (Highways Act 1980)
Agreements (adoption of Highways)

Identify rechargeable works following damage to highway assets (income
recovery)

Provision of emergency out of hours service

Deal with highway flooding and other emergency events/situations

(Moved from Parking Services) Maintenance of Marine Drive (scenic Conwy drive
around Great Orme’s Head)

(Moved from Traffic) Management inspection and maintenance of traffic signs,
road markings, street name plates, pedestrian guardrail, high friction surfacing
(CCBC Only)

(Moved from Parking Services) Car Parks maintenance (e.g. Surface, white lines
and barriers)

Opportunityl: Inspection and maintenance of multi story and underground car
parks (Commentl: Good — better skills to carry out inspections than Parking staft)
Opportunity2: Inspections undertaken on PMAS behalf (i.e.;un-adapted areas of
Highways) — possible income generation

Street Lighting

Undertaking routine and detailed inspections and assessments

(Moved from Network Maintenance) Identify rechargeable works following
damage to highway assets (income recovery)

Routine/cyclic maintenance and programmed works and supervision

Raising of routine maintenance schemes of work for revenue and capital works
instructions

Deliver emergency and planned maintenance works inclusive of County and
Trunk Road Cyclic and Minor works.

Oversee, review and-approve Section 38 and 278 applications.

Routine and reactive maintenance for NWTRA.

Provision of emergency out of hours cover.

Management, design, inspection and maintenance of all illuminated street
furniture.

Management, design, inspection and maintenance of all traffic signals (CCBC

only).
Design, procurement and installation of Street Lighting replacement schemes.

Highway Works Unit

(Moved. from Major Projects) Routine and reactive operation and maintenance
activities for North & Mid Wales Trunk Roads Agency

(Moved from Network Maintenance) Service provider for Trunk Road
Maintenance

(Moved from Civils / Highway Operations) Carriageway Surface Dressing
(Moved from Civils / Highway Operations) Winter Maintenance Provision

Deliver planned maintenance works — (cyclic and) minor improvements,
carriageway and footway patching, horticulture, drainage on County and Trunk
Roads.

Deliver Cyclic Maintenance functions on County and Trunk Roads including gully
emptying.

Deliver emergency highway maintenance activities on County and Trunk Road
Network e.g. Category 1 defects.

Provide an emergency response service inside and outside normal working hours
on County and Trunk Roads.

Recharging NMWTRA works through the Schedule of Rates

Additional Opportunities for consideration.:

= In order to maximise efficiency, an evaluation of the client and contractor roles will need
to be undertaken to include a process mapping session to determine which process
currently in place within CCBC or DCC would be most beneficial in terms of service
delivery whilst also providing the scope for achieving financial savings. There is a
significant amount of duplication at present and taking a 'twin hatted' approach thus

Tudedem 50




removing the client and contract roles is the way forward as we have found within Street

Lighting.

= As mentioned during the meeting, there is a considerable amount of duplication in some
of the operational functions which are undertaken in several sub service functions such as
the approval of Section 38 and 278 applications, processing third party rechargeable
claims and design works. I believe that there may be an opportunity to align some these
functions under one section.

= The use of internal expertise as opposed to external consultants

2, Non Aligned Sub-Service Areas

Service Area & Sub-
service Areas

Functions

Business Development

Finance

Provide a full range of professional accountancy services to Senior Managers of the
Highways and Infrastructure Service.

To be responsible for the budget preparation, monitoring and control of all divisional
budgets, in accordance with the policies and procedures established by the Authority
Provide financial information, advice and support to Senior Managers of the
Highways Department responding promptly to service pressures and taking
appropriate corrective action

Completion of financial and non-financial returns for the National Assembly and
other agencies including Revenue Outturn (RO’s) and Revenue Account (RA’s)
forms, CIPFA statistics and the preparation of various Grant Claims for submission to
the National Assembly Trunk Road partnership and the District Auditor in accordance
with established timescales

Manage the day to day maintenance and control of the stores service, taking
particular responsibility for the ongoing review of stock lines and levels, as well as
receipting, issuing, security and control of stock

Opportunityl: Finance section in CCBC Highways but centralised in DCC (external to
DCC Highways). Explore opportunities to re-align.

Fleet Management &
Maintenance

Operators License

Vehicle maintenance external customers
Vehicle Maintenance internal departments
Tachograph fitment and calibration
Section 19 Permits

Vehicle/Plant, spare parts, general hire etc tendering to E.U. requirements
HGV - PSV - Class 4,5,7 MOT testing

Fuel Management

Vehicle Tracking

Accident management

LOLER inspections

Vehicle Hire

E.U. and Domestic Drivers Hours

Vehicle Cleaning

Taxi and Private Hire Compliance testing

Opportunityl: Fleet Management & Maintenance is currently a sub-service area within
the H&I Service in DCC, and within the Environmental Service in CCBC - explore
opportunities to re-align to either H&I or Environmental Services

Emergency Planning

Emergency Response in DCC

Opportunityl: Emergency Planning is currently a sub-service area within the H&I
Service in DCC, and within the Corporate Civil Contingencies Unit in CCBC (although a
responsible officer has been identified within Conwy H&I — namely the Service
Improvement Manager). Explore opportunities to re-align.

Coastal & Countryside

Countryside Services

Biodiversity (statutory and discretionary elements)

Nature Reserve Management (statutory and discretionary elements)
Countryside Access promotion

Coed Cymru

Opportunityl: Countryside Services is currently a sub-service area within the H&I
Service in CCBC, and within the Environmental Service in DCC - explore opportunities to

Pieidalen 51




re-align to either H&I or Environmental Services

Major Projects & Bridges
Flood & Coastal = Obtaining Welsh Government grant aid for Capital Works on Flood Alleviation
Protection Schemes

(inc. Drainage for DCC
only)

Writing briefs for the procurement of specialist consultants/contractors

Managing design consultants and specialist consultants/ contractors (Preliminary
investigations, detailed design, preparation of contract documents and site
supervision) in connection with flood alleviation schemes

New duties currently being defined as a result of the new Flood & Water
Management Act. Including consenting of works to ordinary watercourses and the
investigation of flooding

Maintaining a databases of flood defence infrastructure

Development and review of Local Flood Risk Management Strategy

Maintaining a database of coastal flood defence infrastructure

Monitor the coastline, including photographic survey. Consider remedial actions to be
taken.

Participating in wider coastal monitoring issues with neighbouring authorities and
organisations

Responding to correspondence from the public, students, local associations, various
coastal institutions.

Preparing contracts to employ Consultants for specialist advice.

Obtaining grant aid from the Welsh Assembly Government for Capital Projects.
Responding to internal consultations on development within the coastal area.
Representing DCC on bodies such as LBCG, Gronant Dunes Advisory Group etc.
Liaison with CCW, EA including protecting environmental habitats

Project Management of Construction Projects

Identifying and prioritising necessary maintenance and repair works to the coastline
and procuring and supervising the works

Managing the culvert systems
Investigating local flood problems
Surface water drainage

Opportunityl: Flood & Coastal Protection is currently a sub-service area within the H&I
Service in DCC, and within the Environmental Service in CCBC - explore opportunities to
re-align to either H&I or Environmental Services

Passenger Transport (inc. Public Transporiation)

Public Transport
(rail, bus, policy,
information)

Maximise the opportunities for access for all to services across Conwy, including
people without a car

Promote sustainable tourism as part of the destination management for Conwy
(working with partners, including bus/rail operators, other authorities, the regional
consortium and WAG)

Where the market cannot provide services commercially and they are socially
necessary, intervene by inviting tenders to provide contracted services, or by
working with community transport operators.

Tudedem 52




Staffing the Structure Costs (assumptions on following page)

€g usjepnyL

Current Structure

Appendix 3

Senvice/Sub-Service Area CCBC Dcc MNew Structure | MNo. Posts MNew Posts Saving Cost Comments
Removed
Busi Develop t £53,125 £50,387 £51,756 1 0 (51,756)
Business, Quality & Customer Management £141,830 £146,907 £265,598 3.89 3 (23.139)
Asset Management £76,231 £67.070 £146,719 0 0 3418
Parking Penalty Processes® £0 £185 362 £155.390 0 0 (28} Administered currently by staff in Parking (also see *Parking
Penally Processes & Parking below
Coastal & Countryside £43.333 £44 325 0 0 992
Harbour Management & Maritime Services £150,879 £52 344 £203.223 0 0 The Harbour & Maritime report reported anticipated collaboration
=avings on =easonal staff in the region of £12.5k
Public Rights of Way £164,180 £135,398 £273,743 1 0 (25,835)
Major Project & Bridges £48.903 0 1 New post 100% funded from Trunk Road Grant
Bridges & Structures £141,190 £111,667 £217 643 1 0 (35.114) Potential for increasze of income levels
Major Projects All employment funded by Capital based on the Capital Projects
P g Transporl £41 616 £44 328 0 0 2. 709|Already working as one tea with staff in one location
Education Transport Service £396. 607 £414 716 £794 138 0 1 (17.085) Excludes relief school escorts & school crossing patrols
Public Transport £0 £59.188 £59,188 0 0
Streetworks & Parking £44 325 0 1 44,325
Streetworks £109,829 £102.473 £183,555 1 0 (28,747) Opportunity to maximise income through enhancing monitoring &
inspection activity
Parking* £292177 £248,022 £487,602 2 0 (52,597) ses "Parking Penalty Processes & Parking below
Highway Development Control £123.168 £86.915 EN36TT 1 1 3.694
Highways Safety & Improv t £44 325 0 1 44,325
Traffic/ Engineering Policy £202,862 £208,486 £271,710 2 0 (139.638) 3 Technicians would works across here and Accident
Investigation & Road Safety. 2x posts moved to ARRS.
Accident Investigation & Road Safety £32,800 £93.,460 £159,591 1 0 33,331 |CCBC & DCC grant funded posts not included
Network Maintenance & Street Lighting £48.903 1 48,903
Highway Maintenance £337.832 £270,132 £643.271 2 0 (64.693)
Street Lighting £276.847 £278.327 £611.229 1 0 (42,945) Already gone through a re-structuring with the appointment of the
shared Street Lighting Manager
Highways Works Unit £1.060.4058 £R76.838 £1.674.699 2 0 0 Cannot release the £89k savings as the reduction in staff is
reflected in the maint £ works account
Sub-Totals pre on-costs £3,592,195 £3,199,208 £6,487,838 18.59 9 (481,577) £181,597
On costs @30% £1,077.659 £9569,762 £1,946,351 (144.473) £54.479
Totals £4,669,854 £4,158,970 £8,434,189 (626,050) £236,076 |net saving (389,974) before additional costs
Additional costs:
*Parking Penalty Processes & Parking (see Table 2 for £48 913|DCC already acts as a Host LA for a 7 LA partnership
breakdown) arrangement which CCBC would joint under integration
4% grade differential to protect against potential JE claims & £337.368 | This calculation iz based on previous JE work and the profile of
Haost LA pay differences the existing jobs to the new jobs
Table 2 Table 3
Penalty Parking Processes & Parking Breakdown* Total Staff Savings
CCBC Total savings from staffing the new structure (626.050)
[WP3- Annual Membership Charge 38,913 Total costs of staffing the new structure £622 357 |(238,078+ 48,913+337,374)
||ntia| Payment 10,000 Total (3,693)|Saving from the new structure
Total Additional Cost 48,913

Assumptions

1 Salaries are based on the top of the scale for current and new posts (to mitigate against changes as we progress)

2 FTE salary is worked out (salary x FTE)

3 The salary for posts under the new structure are an average of the existing two posts (where appropriate) (due to CCBC/DCC differing grade structures) inc. where the HOS has specified a grade

4 On-costs have been added at 30% to the final total salary costs

5 Grant funded posts are not in-scope

6 Posts within the new structure have not been through a Job Evaluation process therefore a JE contingency of 4% has been added to costs
7 A pay structure has not been agreed as it will be dependent on the appointment of the Host Authority
8 The savings amount contain 2x administration posts which individual LAs have not yet realised and are not as a direct result of collaboration

Page 45 of 77



G usfepnL

Assumptions
1 Salaries are based on the top of the scale for current and new posts (to mitigate against changes as we progress)
2 FTE salary is worked out (salary x FTE)
3 The salary for posts under the new structure are an average of the existing two posts (where appropriate) (due to CCBC/DCC differing grade structures) inc. where the HOS has specifie
4 On-costs have been added at 30% to the final total salary costs
5 Grantfunded posts are notin-scope
6 Posts within the new structure have not been through a Job Evaluation process therefore a JE contingency of 4% has been added to costs
7 A pay structure has not been agreed as it will be dependent on the appointment of the Host Authority
8 The savings amount contain 2x administration posts which individual LAs have not yet realised and are not as a direct result of collaboration

Page 46 of 77



JH&I Accommodation Option Appraisal: Scoring the Option

Transfer the weightings into the ‘Agree Weightings’ column.

Give each option a score of between 1 and 5 and enter in the column ‘Raw Score’.

Multiply the ‘Raw Score’ by the ‘Agreed Weightings’ score to give the weighted score.

Appendix 4

5 — Strongly Agree / Improvement

4 — Agree / Some Improvement

3 — Neither Agree nor Disagree / No change
2 — Disagree / Slightly Worse

1 — Strongly Disagree / Worse

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Non-Financial Benefits Criteria Re-location of Heath based Retain Caledfryn and the Heath Staff from the Heath and
staff to the Caledfryn site sites, reorganising the staff Caledfryn to be located in a
Agreed according to Service / Sub- building formally used as
Weighting Service Areas where appropriate office space (St Asaph
Business Park)
Raw Weighted Raw Weighted Raw Weighted

Increased customer satisfaction 15 3 45 2 30 3 45
a

The whole Service is recognised as a high 4 40 1 10 4 40
b | performing service 10
— Improved development and career opportunities for 4 40 2 20 4 40
é_ new and existing employees 10
qQ
v Increased flexibility in and efficient use of limited 5 75 4 60 5 75
g resources 15
81' Minor disruption to.the _delivery of the Highways and 2 20 2 20 1 10
€ | Infrastructure Service (inc. employees) 10

Minor disruption to the delivery of other council 2 20 2 20 1 10
f | services (inc. employees) 10

Must be likely to receive political buy-in ) 1 15 3 45 2 30
g

Must have staff buy-in or the potential to overcome 1 15 4 60 2 30
h | staff opposition 15

Total Option Score 22 270 20 265 22 280

Page 47 of 77



Option 1

Option 2 Option 3

Disturbance Costs

Staff profiling work

would be required to ascertain these costs for the FBC

Transitional Costs (one off)

£250,000

(100 Heath staff to Caledfryn) &
(150 DCC staff relocation)

£100,000

based on apx.-100 staff transferring

£200,000

all 200 Heath and Caledfryn staff to
St Asaph

Lease Costs (per annum)

£0

£0 £105,000

Running Costs (per annum)

£155,000

£243,777 £80,000

Based on a building similar in size

(Caledfryn) (Caledfryn £155,000 — running costs / -
100 staff) +/(Heath'£88,777) and construction
Corporate Costs (per annum) | Year 1 £109,500 £0 | Year 1 £174,500
Year 2 £117,250 Year 2 £182,250
(Heath Mothballed apx. £19,500 yr 1 (Heath Mothballed apx. £19,500 yr 1
& £27,250 yr 2 ) & (re-located DCC & £27,250 yr 2 ) & (Caledfryn cost
staff £90,000) remains at £155,000)
Total | Year 1 £514,500 Year 1 £343,777 Year 1 £559,500
E' Year 2 £272,250 Year 2 £243,777 Year 2 £367,250
o Additional Cost of the Option | Year 1 £270,723 Year 1 £100,000 Year 1 £315,723
Cg) pared against the current running costs at the Caledfryn and Heath at £243,777 Year 2 £28,473 Year 2 £0 Year 2 £123,473
(&ledfryn £155,000 + Heath 88,777)
(o)
(o)}
Raw Score
Criteria Agreed Option1 Option2 Option 3 Contributing Factors

Weighting
Increased customer satisfaction

(All Options) The project provides an opportunity to
develop a community relationship role for each of the
‘Service managers’ in the new structure. It is important
that a strong presence and up to date knowledge is
maintained to provide a high quality service. There will
be cultural change. This is dependent on: (see the next
two factors).

(All Options) Overcoming the challenges and Impact of
each Accommodation option on the ‘Service Manager’
roles given the additional travel required across the
region to attend meetings/customers etc. More
travel/downtime means less capacity to deal with
‘detail’, and responsibilities potentially needing to be

Page 48 of 77




LG usjepny

Criteria Agreed
Weighting

Raw Score
Option1 Option2 Option 3

Contributing Factors

delegated to Job Descriptions at lower grades in the
organisation structure. There is a risk of a slower and
lesser quality response. This requires the establishment
of.a Customer Services Strategy and the
encouragement of Highways officers to own problems
and service requests through to resolution. Timely
responses and updates will be provided to the
customers of the Highways service.

(All Options) Officers that are employed by either
authority pre-integration may not have the personal
knowledge of either Denbighshire or Conwy
territory/Assets, or know-how that will be necessary for
a future integrated service to function better compared
to now. This can be accelerated by developing a robust
Asset Management database including all CCBC and
DCC Highways assets and ensuring officers have
access and have responsibility to apply it to solutions.

(All Options) There is an opportunity to align and
improve processes and practices, providing a better
service for the customer. Again, whilst this can be
achieved by all three options, changes will be adopted
and managed more effectively from a single location.

(All Options) Use of a Call centre/CRM tools by
internal/external customers. Access to quality timely
information will be crucial to ensure a one service
approach. As well as the use of common technology this
will require complementary workflow, scripts and officer
training.

(Options 1&3) the cultural alignment is a key factor in
ensuring that an integrated service can deliver its
benefits. This is most likely to be achieved when all
staff are working from one location.

(Option 1& 3) A single location could be perceived as
being more remote and/or less available to Conwy or

Page 49 of 77



8G usjepnL

Criteria

Agreed
Weighting

Option 1

Raw Score

Option 2 Option 3

Contributing Factors

Denbighshire customers with a greater risk of lower
satisfaction. This can be countered by developing a
high quality customer service regime, devising a
Customer Services Strategy and implementing new
ways of working to monitor and improve the tracking,
accuracy and quality of enquires received and
responses provided to customers. This should lead to a
Highways culture that is more customer focused.

(Option 1& 3) Consideration for the ease of access for
customers making physical visits to H&I.

(Option 2) Excellence in communication within the
single service (across one or two buildings) is going to
be paramount including keeping the internal or external
customer up to date on progress of their issue.

b The whole Service is recognised as a
high performing service

10

(All Options) Removal of duplication — ‘once not twice’.
This is a natural progression by having one service
rather than two. Staff co-located in same service or
sub-service teams have opportunity to develop best
practices and common and consistent working
approaches, remove bad practices. This may be better
achieved through one single location.

(All Options) It will take time for the service
performance to stabilise following any manager / staff
moves. Performance may well dip for a period before it
is feasible for the integrated service to attain any
planned higher service level(s). Working practice
changes must be planned, ahead and driven forward by
the new management structure on behalf of Member(s)
as staff re-locate.

(All Options) Excellence in communication is
paramount throughout a period of ‘change’ otherwise
there is the risk of misperception as to the actual service

Page 50 of 77




6G usfepnL

Criteria

Agreed
Weighting

Raw Score
Option1 Option2 Option 3

Contributing Factors

activities underway and the service level(s) being
achieved or planned.

(All Options) With the lack of initial investment to back
an accommodation solution to a fully integrated service,
there/is the danger that the building will dictate the
business need.

c Improved development and career
opportunities for new and existing
employees

10

(All Options) There will be better opportunities for skill
sharing and development, given the benefits that will
arise by combining both Authorities’ Highways
knowledge and skills, section by section. This is likely
to be best achieved through accommodation in one
single location.

(All Options) Staff co-located in same service or sub-
service teams will have shared access to new
opportunities. The number and frequency of such
opportunities will be dependent on service need; also
changes in capital works etc.

(All Options) Staff will need support to overcome their
personal challenges when faced with ‘Change’,
especially if working in a new location and also within a
new team potentially (especially if outside previous
county working boundaries as in Options 1&3).

(Options 1&3) The single location may restrict the
viability of opportunities for some staff due to greater
journey times and distance; this is a greater risk for
Option 1.

d Increased flexibility in and efficient use
of limited resources

15

(All Options) Resources can be shared by multiple staff
and teams. It is likely that the greatest efficiencies will
arise from all H&I staff being located in the same
location (single building) with a lesser benefit possible
when sub-services are co-located in one of two

Page 51 of 77



09 usjepnL

Criteria Agreed
Weighting

Raw Score

Option 2 Option 3

Contributing Factors

buildings.

(All Options) Economies of scale for procurement can
be achieved by only needing to prepare tender
documents once, which requires less officer time and
efforts” In addition, tenders which have a greater value of
work will often attract more competitive rates.

(All Options) Extra capacity and resilience which is
better able to manage peaks in workload, and better
able to deal with staff changes through absence and
turnover. Flexible working practices, review of
divisional/inspection areas, supervisor roles, shift
patterns, stand by arrangements (the identification of
such improvements in the use of Asset and detailed
working practices are outside the scope of this project).

(Option 1) There needs to be a recognition that as a
result of this option there is a potential lost opportunity
of releasing assets identified in the DCC Corporate
Accommodation Strategy.

(Option 3) Without considering an innovative approach
to ICT that would provide opportunities for flexible space
utilisation through improved technologies, the St Asaph
site would be restricted, with little room for expansion
and restrictions with regards to large equipment,
storage, etc. An invested approach would aim for an
80% desk provision utilising new and mobile
technologies, providing more flexible use of the
accommodation now and in the future (the identification
of such improvements in the use of Asset and detailed
working practices are outside the scope of this project).

Page 52 of 77



19 usjepnyt

Weighting
e Minor disruption to the delivery of the 10 2 2 1 (Option 1&3) A full scale move into either St Asaph or
Highways and Infrastructure Service Caledfryn will take time to settle. Performance may well
(inc. employees) dip for a period before reaching any planned higher

Raw Score
Criteria Agreed Option1 Option2 Option3 Contributing Factors

service level(s). Practice changes must be planned and
driven: forward by the new management structure on
behalf'of Member(s).

(Option 2) It needs to be recognised that the intention
to relocate small numbers of staff to larger teams
working from one site, invariably results in a larger
number of staff needing to be relocated (although this
may be within their current location) to allow this to
occur.

f Minor disruption to the delivery of other 10 2 2 1 (Option 2) It needs to be recognised that the intention
council services (inc. employees) to relocate small numbers of staff to larger teams
working from one site, invariably results in a larger
number of staff needing to be relocated (although this
may be within their current location) to allow this to
occur.

(Option 1) DCC staff working for other services (not
H&I) will need to be relocated resulting in a potential
knock on effect for many of DCC services and their
staff.

(Option 1&3) Relationships between Highways and
other services will change- at each of CCBC and DCC -
including the Corporate Centre(s), Planning,
Environment and Technical Services.

g Must be likely to receive political buy=in 15 1 3 2 (Option 1) There needs to be a recognition that as a
result of this option there is a potential lost opportunity
of releasing assets identified in the DCC Corporate
Accommodation Strategy.

Page 53 of 77



¢9 usjepny

Criteria

Agreed

Weighting

Raw Score
Option1 Option2 Option 3

Contributing Factors

(Option 1&3) Perception of Members at both CCBC
and DCC is important given the risk that a single
building may be seen as creating a ‘remote’ and
impersonal service for both CCBC and DCC customers
compared to current local contact(s) ongoing.

h Must have staff buy-in or the potential
to overcome staff opposition

15

(All " Options) Staff may leave due to increase
requirements to travel to their new place of work, a
particular risk for Options 1&3).

(All Options) There will be better opportunities for skill
sharing and development, harnessing the benefits of
combined knowledge and skills. This may be better
achieved through one single location.

(All Options) Staff co-located in same service or sub-
service teams will have common access to new
opportunities. The number and frequency of such
opportunities will be dependent on staff resources in
post compared to demand i.e. service need; also
changes in capital works etc.

(All Options) Staff will need support to overcome their
personal challenges if working in a new location and a
new team potentially (especially if outside previous
county working boundaries as in Options 1&3).

(Options 1&3) The single location may restrict the
viability of opportunities for some staff due to distance;
this is a greater risk for Option 1.

(Option 2) It needs to be recognised that the intention
to relocate small numbers of staff to have full teams
working from one site, invariably results in a larger
number of staff needing to be relocated (maybe within

Page 54 of 77



€9 usjepnyL

Criteria Agreed
Weighting

Option 1

Raw Score

Option 2 Option 3

Contributing Factors

their current location) to allow this to occur.

Raw Totals

22

20

22

Page 55 of 77




Appendix 5
PROPOSAL FOR: Highways and Integration / Conwy and Denbighshire

Officer Group
FROM: Denbighshire and Conwy’s ICT departments
DATE: 15" August 2012

1. BACKGROUND

Conwy and Denbighshire ICT departments produced two joint reports for the Conwy
and Denbighshire Officer Group (CDOG) in July 2011 and November 2011 outlining
proposals and estimated costs for IT service delivery to the integrated service.
Further to these reports, CDOG have requested more detail on the current and
estimated future costs for ICT systems and applications utilised by the service.

This report provides an update of the estimated additional Capital and Revenue costs
required to support existing systems under the following options:

= Option 1 - Re-location of Heath based staff to the Caledfryn site

= Option 2 - Retain Caledfryn and the Heath sites, reorganising the staff
according to Service / Sub-Service Areas where appropriate

= Option 3 - Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn to be located in a building
formally used as office space (St Asaph Business Park)

2. A FULLY |INTEGRATED H&l SERVICE SUPPORTED BY
DENBIGHSHIRE ICT OR CONWY ICT AS HOST AUTHORITY.

Assumptions and Points to Note

= The costs detailed in this report are in addition to the existing costs of the delivery
of IT services to the H&l service

= The transitional and additional running costs are in the main attributed to the
transfer of H&I staff, ICT systems and Infrastructure to a Host LA, rather than the
physical relocation.

= Capital and revenue costs for the implementation of completely new systems or
technologies aimed at delivering transformation and efficiencies within the Joint
Integrated Highways Service (e.g. EDRMS, Sharepoint, IPADs) cannot be
included in this report without a clear specification of Service requirements.
However, there may be opportunities for efficiencies through investment in these
technologies but they are out of scope for this project. Additional capacity for new
work would be costed separately.

=  Where possible staff will move their existing pc/laptop/tablet/printer and telephony
hardware/software licenses in to the new integrated service. The hardware is of
an appropriate specification and condition to be supported in the new joint
service.

= The cost to migrate data and licenses will need to be investigated with the
individual application owners once the decision has been made which
applications will be used by the joint H&I service and which of the LAs will act as
the host (See Appendix 3). Without this information at a specific application level
it is difficult to make an assumption on any savings or additional costs that may

Page 56 of 77

Tudalen 64




be incurred in relation to systems usage. Additional hardware and specialist
consultancy charges are also likely to be incurred to accommodate any systems
migrations from one authority to another.

The systems used by both DCC and CCBC are detailed in section 3.13 and 3.14
of the joint report produced in July 2011.

The 200 Highways and Infrastructure staff number is apportioned on a 50/50 ratio
with 100 staff currently CCBC employees and 100 currently DCC employees.
Therefore, each ICT service will be taking on an additional 100 staff to support.

The merger of existing systems or implementation of replacements for the Joint
Highways and Infrastructure Service will carry a substantial additional overhead
on both ICT Services as the migration work is undertaken and consequential
network or server infrastructure improvements are introduced. Consultancy costs
from existing and new ICT providers are likely to be high but Conwy and
Denbighshire can provide specialists in technology areas such as Networks,
Telephony, Virtualisation, SAN, Citrix, AD, SQL, Desktops and Security to help
limit the requirement for external expertise.

An estimated additional cost of £75k has been put forward as a reasonable,
‘transitional’ charge to allow a contribution towards resourcing the extensive
additional workloads brought about in managing this merger for the hosting ICT
service. Resource could not be freed up from the non-hosting Council as officers
are not purely dedicated to Highways work and instead deliver IT support and
management services across the Council. This transitional fund should be put in
place for an initial period of 2 years with an agreement to review at the end of this
term.

Each ICT service will work in partnership to support transfer of skills wherever
possible to enable officers in the host service to support systems and
technologies operated by the integrated H&l service. This will help alleviate some
of the demand and costs associated with training/3rd party consultancy.

Where systems are common across Conwy and Denbighshire, all licences
transfer at no additional cost (as this is not a guarantee that all licence ownership
rights can be transferred to one authority or another, section 3 and appendix 3,
will highlight separately the potential costs that could be incurred if all licence
ownerships are not transferred).

Page 57 of 77

Tudalen 65




3. SUMMARY OF SET UP AND ANNUAL COSTS

USING DCC SYSTEMS

Option 1
Re-location of Heath
based staff to the
Caledfryn site

Option 2
Retain Caledfryn and the Heath
sites, reorganising the staff
according to Service / Sub-
Service Areas where appropriate

Option 3
Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn to
be located in a building formally used as
office space (St Asaph Business Park)

Set Up Costs

(includes costs from £211k £222k £272k
Appendix 1 &3)
Annual Costs
(Includes costs from £61k £52k £72k
Appendix 2 & 3)
USING CCBC SYSTEMS
Option 1 Option 2 Option 3

Re-location of Heath
based staff to the
Caledfryn site

Retain Caledfryn and the Heath
sites, reorganising the staff
according to Service / Sub-Service
Areas where appropriate

Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn to
be located in a building formally used as
office space (St Asaph Business Park)

Set Up Costs

(includes costs from £196k £207k £257k

Appendix 1 & 3)

Annual Costs

(Includes costs from

Appendix 2 &3 ) £34k £25k £45k
Page 58 of 77

Tudalen 66




Appendix 1 - Set Up Costs

Option 1
Re-location of Heath based staff to the
Caledfryn site

Option 2
Retain Caledfryn and the
Heath sites, reorganising the
staff according to Service /
Sub-Service Areas where
appropriate

Option 3
Staff from the Heath and
Caledfryn to be located in a
building formally used as office
space (St Asaph Business Park)

Comments

ASSUMPTIONS

e  Staff will bring their own

desktops (PCs/laptops),
printers and plotters.

e 100 DCC employees will vacate

Caledfryn to make room for the
100 CCBC staff members.
Costs for relocating these staff
that have not been factored
within this proposal

® Existing wireless coverage in

current locations will be used

e All 200 staff will stay in

their existing locations
and will use their
existing desktops
(PCs/ laptops),
printers and plotters

e  Existing wireless

coverage in current
locations will be used.

e Staff will bring their
existing desktops
(PCsllaptops), printers

and plotters.

e The existing cabling will

be used in the building

—]
=
S%Vers, Storage, Backup and UPS
)
-

£35,000 £35,000 £35,000
(host LA will increase numbers on (host LA will increase (host LA will increase numbers
servers) numbers on servers) on servers)
Lcal Area Network £25,000 (cabling, switches,
o)) n/a n/a .
f internally)
Wide Area Network Link £5,500
n/a n/a (cabling, switches to external
host)
Telephony Services including Call Centre With regards to Option 1, we are
Technology. n/a n/a £16,000 relying on 100 current users moving
(infrastructure) out .Rental charge is £250 per
extension
PC software licensing for 3 to 5 years. An additional £18 per user will need to
£40,000 £40,000 £40,000 be included for laptops for encryption

(Anti Virus, Active Directory, USB control, asset
management, desktop management, e-mail, power
management, Office standard, client access
licenses)

(the two LAs use different products,
not ability to transfer licences —
cannot recoup on existing licences
in none host LA)

(the two LAs use different
products, not ability to
transfer licences — cannot
recoup on existing licences
in none host LA)

(the two LAs use different
products, not ability to transfer
licences — cannot recoup on
existing licences in none host
LA)

software.

Page 59 of 77




Application Licensing e.g. mapping, AutoCAD

Please see Appendix 3

Please see Appendix 3

Please see Appendix

Dependant on the Host LA in some
cases. A more detailed costing

3 exercise will need to be undertaken for
full business case
URL filtering and proxy software £2,000 £2,000 £2,000 Websense is £20 per user for 3 year
(stops use of unofficial sites) (stops use of unofficial sites) (stops use of unofficial sites) | contract
Remote Access £11,550 £11,550 £11,550 (assumption that DCC - £231 per license, assuming 50

(assumption that more flexible

(assumption that more flexible

more flexible working will be

remote users required.
Conwy do not raise a charge upfront

working will be required) working will be required) required) but charge higher annual rates (£132).
Citrix presentation over shared services VRF £11,550 (staff working in one For 50 users (assuming that the
n/a LA needing access to the host n/a remaining 50 are already paying for
LA) remote access as above)
Mobile Phones & Blackberries Based on 100 users using a ‘free’
— contract device and £15 rental that is
c £0 £0 £0 covered below.
o There may be decommissioning costs
Q for mobiles if mobiles are still in
farY contract.
uUssr training £20.000 £20 000 £20,000 Nominal figure of 40 days @ £500 per
_C%S ’ ’ (staff training) day
| taff Training in different technologies. £10,000 £10,000 £10,00Q ' Based on £1000 per day.
(Host LA training)
Wireless coverage in meeting rooms and hot No guest access
desk areas n/a n/a £15,000 provided
Resource to support 100 additional users £75,349.00 £75,349.00 £75,349.00 This resource is across a number of

(2year costs initially)

(2year costs initially)

(2year costs initially)

staff due to the specialist skills
required.

TOTAL SETUP COSTS

£193,899

£205,449

£255,399

Page 60 of 77




Appendix 2 — Annual Costs

Option 1

Re-location of Heath based staff to the

Caledfryn site

Option 2
Retain Caledfryn and the
Heath sites, reorganising the
staff according to Service /
Sub-Service Areas where

Option 3
Staff from the Heath and Caledfryn
to be located in a building formally
used as office space (St Asaph
Business Park)

Comments

appropriate
Annual maintenance for Servers, Storage, £2 000 £2,000 £2,000
Backup and UPS ’ . (based on charges paying (based on charges paying
(based on charges paying now)
now) now)
Local Area Network n/a n/a £1,500
(cabling, switches, internally)
Wide Area Network Link £8,000
n/a n/a (cabling, switches to external
host)
Telephony £6,500 £150 per extension plus £6,500
— £15,000 maintenance for new system for
c £15,000 n/a (dependant on the host Option 3. (H&I will be paying for
8‘ decision) extension costs now?)
EI_%'C software licensing
@Hnti Virus, Active Directory, USB control,
@set management, desktop management, £8,000 . £8,000 £8,000
e-mail, power management, Office standard) (annual support & maintenance (gnnua/ support & (gnnual support &
charges) maintenance charges) maintenance charges)

Application Licensing e.g. mapping,

Dependant on the Host LA in some

AutoCAD . Please see . cases. A more detailed costing
Please see Appendix 3 Appendix 3 Please see Appendix 3 | 2 e will need to be undertaken
for full business case.
Annual maintenance for URL filtering £20 per user will be paid in year 4
£0 £0 £0

software

Annual maintenance for Remote Access Assuming 50 remote users required.
£3,000 £3,000 £3,000 Based on CCBC charge of £132 per

user with no upfront charge.

Page 61 of 77




DCC charge £60 per user, with an
additional upfront charge.

Annual maintenance for Citrix presentation

For 50 users (assuming that the

over shared services VRF n/a £6,600 n/a remaining 50 are already paying for
remote access as above)

Annual costs for Mobile Phones & Based on 100 users using a ‘free’

Blackberries £0 £0 £0 contract device and £15 per month
rental
(H&I are possibly paying now?)

Annual maintenance for Wireless coverage

in meeting rooms and hot desk areas n/a n/a £2,000

Additional Annual Revenue £28,000 £19,600 39,500

0/ usjfepnlL

Page 62 of 77




1/ usjfepnyt

Appendix 3 — Detail of Departmental Specific Systems

Please Note:

(i)

(i)

The following analysis is based on information supplied by the Service and is therefore an estimate of the current and future positions.
Should the project proceed to a FBC, detailed written costs would need to be provided by suppliers.

That where systems are common across Conwy and Denbighshire (highlighted in grey), an assumption has been made that all licences will
transfer at no additional cost, and whilst the potential liability is detailed, they are not included in the totals. The total liability has the
potential to reach an additional estimated £292k in set up costs and £161,851 annual costs.

Assumptions:

For purposes of calculation, it is assumed the requirements for licensing for each system / device will double.

Migration of existing systems will incur significant additional costs for data transfer, migration, upgrades and new / replacement hosting
hardware.

Consultancy and IT infrastructure charges for systems that are not currently implemented e.g. CRM, Sharepoint are not included.
Assumed an additional 20 MS Project licences

All figures above with £0 value doesn’t necessarily mean that there won't be a cost - it means that costs were unknown at the time of
producing the report.

The additional estimated annual costs should be discounted due to current spend, therefore we have halved the ‘real’ cost above to
accommodate a transitional stage in the project whereby negotiation of contracts and parallel running of systems will take place.
There are other systems not costed as they are not currently implemented into to Highways & infrastructure but may be in future e.g.
EDRMS, Sharepoint

Page 63 of 77



¢/l usjepng

Denbighshire Summary of Software Costs for Systems in Use within Highways & Infrastructure Services

Current Current Estimate Estimate Annual
Licenses Estimate Additional Costs to Double
Owned / Annual Costs to Users
Users Costs to H&l | Double Users
Set Up Annual
Corporate Systems Product Details
GIS Corp Mapping Product 70 £2,520 £0 £2,520
Reporting from Ledger M-Power NA £0 £0 £0
Creditors Unidata SB NA £0 £0 £0
Collaborative Planning (Budgets) CP NA £0 £0 £0
Debtors Proforma NA £0 £0 £0
Cash Management Spectrum NA £0 £0 £0
HR / payroll Midland Trent / i-Trent Payslips £0 £0 £0
Online Ordering Proactis NA £0 £0 £0
Clocking software Visiontime 100 £0 £6,000 £0
Project Management MS Project 20 £0 £1,364 £0
Integrated Service Systems
H&I Asset Management Symology Insight 26 £35,567 £50,960 £10,192
CAD AutoCAD Map 3D & Civil 3D 12 £7,900 £58,500 £7,900
AutoCAD LT 6 £1,230 £7,500 £1,230
Mapping / GIS Mapinfo professional 19 £4,883 £0 £4,883
Mapinfo Plan View 10 £520 £0 £520
£0
Dmaps NA £8080 £0
Trimble GPS Devices 21 £2,940 £12,600 £2,940

Page 64 of 77




gl usjepny

Business Development

Land Charges / Searches for Conwy Swift Land Charges 2 £0 £0 £0
Asset Surveys YOTTA Survey Data 1 £0 £0 £0
Civil Parking Enforcement Spur Si-Dem 0 £6,251 £0 £12,502

Spur Si-Log (handheld

devices) 0 £2,244 £0 £4,488
Coastal & Countryside
Harbour Management Star Computing Havenstar 2 £1,380 £0 £1,380
Manage vessel launching In-House 0 £0 £0 £0
Digicard Pre-pay utility software 0 £0 £0 £0
Harbour lettings and licenses Paxton net 0 £1,648 £0 £3,296
Major Projects & Bridges
Time Management Profess NA £878 £0 £0
Design software MX 2 £2,580 £2,580 £5,160
Highways Sign software KeySign 1 £0 £0 £0
Road Marking Software KeyLines 1 £0 £0 £0
Software for traffic management layouts KeyRoadworks 4 £1,800 £1,800 £3,600
Mapping Dmaps 0 £0 £0 £0
Drainage design software WinDes 1 £1,614 £1,614 £3,228
AutoTrack 0 £328 £0 £656
Passenger Transport

Capita ONE Transport &
School Transport System Route Mgt 4 £7,239 £4 £7,239
Bus Pass Cube System Bus Pass Printing Systems
School Transport Incident Reporting STIR 0 £0 £0 £0
Trapeze Publicity Systems 0 £0 £0 £0

Page 65 of 77




v/ usfepnyL

Streetworks & Parking Management

Streetworks System In-House 8 £0 £0 £0
Highways Safety & Improvement
Accident Plotting & Monitoring Key Accident (AM for up to 2) 2 £690 £3,600 £0
Line Plotting & Monitoring Key Lines (AM for up to 2) 1 £210 £0 £420
Sign Plotting & Monitoring Key Sign (AM for up to 2) 1 £210 £0 £420
Remote Monitoring System Siemems Remote Monitoring 1 £2,700 £0 £5,400
Traffic light Modelling Linsig 1 £295 £0 £590
Parking restrictions Parkmap 1 946 £0 £1,892
Vehicle Activated Signs AGD 0 £0 £0 £0
Micromatch micromatch 1 £316 £0 £632
AutoTrack Share with Major Projects 0 £0 £0 £0
Network Maintenance & Street Lighting
Streetlighting System Hilight Horizon 7 £1,031 £800
Gritter Tracking & Mgt Track U 14 £3,998 £13,914 £3,998
Street Lighting SLiMs 5 £2,151 £0 £4 302
lighting reality design software 4 £70 £0 £1,580
Time management Profess NA £878 £0 £0
Totals
(including common systems in DCC & CBBC) £160,440 £146,973
TOTALS £16,958 £32,856

(excl. common systems in DCC & CBBC)

Page 66 of 77




G/ usjepnyt

Conwy Summary of Software Costs for Systems in Use within Highways & Infrastructure Services

Current Cu_rrent Estin_late :

Licenses Estimate Additional Estimate Annual

Owned / Annual Costs to Costs to Double

Users Costs to Double Users
H&lI Users
Set Up Annual

Corporate Systems Product Details
Internet & Intranet CMS Webstructure CMS £0 £0 £0
GIS Corp Mapping Product 70 £2,520 £0 £2,520
Ledger CA Masterpiece NA £0 £0 £0
Creditors CA Masterpiece NA £0 £0 £0
Finance Reporting MRC reporting tool NA £0 £0 £0
Debtors In-House - AS400 NA £0 £0 £0
Cash Management In-House - AS400 NA £0 £0 £0
HR / payroll Midland Trent / i-Trent Payslips £0 £0 £0
Contractors System Contractor Plus 8 £30,000 £0 £0
Online/Automated Payments Civica Web Pay £0 £0 £0
Integrated Service Systems
H&l Asset Management Symology Insight 26 £35,567 £50,960 £10,192
CAD AutoCAD Map 3D & Civil 3D 12 £7,900 £58,500 £7,900
CAD AutoCAD LT 6 £1,230 £7,500 £1,230
Mapping / GIS Mapinfo professional 19 £4,883 £0 £4,883
Mapping / GIS Mapinfo Plan View 10 £520 £0 £520
Time Recording Accutime Unlimited £700 £0 £0
Trimble GPS Devices Handheld GPS PDAs 21 £2,940 £12,600 £2,940

Business Development

Page 67 of 77




9/ us|epnlL

Land Charges / Searches for Conwy Swift Land Charges 2 £0 £0 £0
Asset Surveys YOTTA Survey Data 1 £0 £0 £0
20000

Parking Enforcement & Permits Si-Dem Tkts £3,486 £0 £3,486
Costal & Countryside
Harbour Management Star Computing Havenstar 2 £1,380 £0 £1,380
Tide Plotting Belfield Tide Plotter 1 £7 £0 £7
Navigation Aids PANAR Software 1 £0 £0 £0
Major Projects & Bridges
Time Management Profess 25 £1,756 £0 £0
Finite Element Analysis Superstress 1 £3,000 £1 £3,000
Passanger Transport

Capita ONE Transport & Route
School Transport System Mgt 4 £7,239 £4 £7,239
Bus Pass Cube System Bus Pass Printing Systems 0 £0
Streetworks & Parking Management
Streetworks System (Permits & Licensing) In-House - MS Access 8 £0 £0 £0
Highways Safety & Improvement
Accident Plotting & Monitoring Key Accident (AM for up to 2) 1 £690 £3,600 £0
Line Plotting & Monitoring Key Lines (Am for up to 2) 1 £420 £1,890 £0
Sign Plotting & Monitoring Key Sign (AM for up to 2) 1 £400 £2,295 £0
Vehicle Sweep Path Analysis Auto Turn 1 £289 £1,640 £289
Road Traffic Safety Modelling TAITH 1 £0 £0 £0

Page 68 of 77




,/ us|fepny

Network Maintenance & Street Lighting

Streetlighting System Hilight Horizon 7 £1,031 £0 £800

Gritter Tracking & Mgt Track U 14 £3,998 £13,914 £3,998
Totals

(including common systems in DCC & £109,956 £152,908 £53,545
CBBC)

UL £1,641 £5,816

(excl. common systems in DCC & CBBC)

Page 69 of 77




Project Risk Register

Created :

April 2012

Last Update: July 2012

Event is almost certain to occur in most ~70% Almost
X b

a circumstances Certain
<) Event likely to occur in most 20.70% .
3 circumstances Y
: Event will possibly occur at some time | 10-30% Possible
=

Event unlikely and may occur at some
= ¥ and may 1-10% Unlikely
q time

Event rare and may occur only in 1% Rare
exceptional circumstances )

Very Low

Appendix 6

Low Medium High

Very High

Service Performance

Minor errors or
disruption

Some disruption to
activities/customers

Disruption to core
activities/ customers
targets missed

Significant disruption to
core activities. Key

Unable to delivery core
activities. Strategic aims
compromised

Trust recoverable with
little effort or cost

Trust recoverable at
modest cost with

Trust recovery demands
cost authorisation

Trust recoverable at
considerable cost and

Trust severely damaged
and full recovery

Reputation rc;o:l:rc‘ ;l\llzcg:]:“ beyond existing budgets | management attention | questionable and costly
Financial Cost (£) <£50k £50k - £350k £350k - £1 m £1m-£5m >£5m
IMPACT
Note: This Risk Register was created using the engagement from the Visioning Worksho
Ref nd. Risk Consequence Score / Risk reduction measures & Score / Further Action Action Milestone‘
S_ description level of controls residual owner Dates
_Y) inherent risk
o risk score
JH&ER1 That there is = Unable to commit to an A3 A review of Review of Office & Depot | A3(may 12) | Prepare the Option Project July 2012
(01/Q3f12) | not enough outline service design. Accommodation is underway. Initial (Jul 12) | Appraisal document in Lead/
(0] clear = Cannot plan for the options are: readiness for the Project
information to staffing compliment. » Do nothing; completion of the Service | Manager
inform the = Unable to undertake = Rationalise existing staff into the Design and Staffing
Accommodatio financial modelling for two main office buildings currently
n Strategy. the FBC. utilised;
= Members will not = Relocate all office staff to one

support the FBC forcing
the collaboration to be
reconsidered.

July 2012 Update:

central location, either through a
currently owned site or a new
one.

Accommodation meeting has taken
place and a work package prepared.
The draft Service Design has been
developed and is being shared with
staff. Further work is underway to
staff the model.

Page 70 of 77



Ref no. Risk Consequence Score / Risk reduction measures & Score / Further Action Action Milestone‘
description level of controls residual owner Dates
inherent risk
risk score
JH&I_R2 That the = Will not meet the C1 Members from across the two C1(may 12) | Engage with the cabinets Project Aug/Sept
(01/05/12) | changing commitments of the authorities have been engaged over C1 (ul 12) | atthe end of Stage 2 (see | Lead/Proje 2012
Political Compact the last 3 years in workshops to Project Plan) ct Manager
landscape will = Missed opportunity to support and drive the development of
reverse the realise benefits and a Joint H&l Service. The feasibility
collaboration capitalise on the study* presented to Cabinet in
process. integration work to date December was supported with
within Service Areas. caveats.
* Members ability to
collaborate lacks Elections will take place in May which
credibility. may result in a new administration
= Negative impact on the and new portfolio holders for this
— moral and motivation of Service (or aspects of it).
g_ employees.
Q July 2012 Update:
D The Portfolio Cabinet Members have
- been briefed on the project, and have
~ agreed to join QAT1 with regular
(o] opportunities to meet to discuss and
input to the developments.
JH&I_R3 That there will = Employees do not know ain P (May 12) | Develop the Service Project TBC
(01/05/12) | be a loss of where they belong. :)—?oep];eszsllsb;gtryesr;usgygeu:Itr:)et?-ansfer (Jul12) | Areas Design with H&l Manager
identify. = Skilled and valued Management Team and

employees leave.

from their existing employer to a Host
LA (Governance : Host LA —
Delegation)

However, until the Service Areas
Design (outline) is clear, it will be
impossible to create the right identity.

July 2012 Update:
The draft Service Design has been

H&I Service Area
Managers.

Page 71 of 77



Ref no. Risk Consequence Score / Risk reduction measures & Score / Further Action Action Milestone‘
description level of controls residual owner Dates
inherent risk
risk score
developed and is being shared with
staff. Further work is underway to
staff the model.
JH&I_R4 That there are | = Increased costs to the . . i (May 12) | These figures will be Project Sept 2012
(01/05/12) | unrealistic or customer. ggfe;?gf'f;’gg¥as$‘;?dya,:g§2t}f;2‘f,ings (Jul12) | reviewed and adjusted as | Manager/
insufficient = Draws funding away based on assumptions in the region of we progress through ?”ance
financial from other key £1.3m Stage 2 of this project, Mimer
benefits and priorities. T with firm estimated cost
that it may in » Unable to meet service avoidances / savings
— fact cost more. efficiency targets. being developed for the
g_ = Lack o_f co_nfifdttance in FBC. Senior Sept 2012
engaging in future Responsibl
% coﬁagorgtive ventures. Und_e rtake a Gateway e Of?icer
= Review (SRO)
JH&L R5 That the = Negative impact on the (%! May 12) | Finalise the Project Sept 2012
(01/@ 2) | ‘rumour mill’ is moral and motivation of Sg(r)e-r;o,;lneevﬁ:‘itrtri;gii l\:/)v(?ﬁ]nsl::f?,d to (Jul 12) | Communication Plan. Manager

more powerful
than formal
communication
channels.

employees.
= Slows the pace of the
project.
Can result impact on
the quality of the
service delivered now
and in the future.
= Skilled and valued
employees leave.
= Exacerbates risk
JH&I_R7

however the frequency and timing of
these releases needs to be
considered.

The JH&I Project Team will take
responsibility for the ROOT1
publication until the FBC is produced.
The intention is to make the
publication more meaningful by using
it to keep employees up to date in real
time and as a vehicle for consultation
and feedback.

July 2012 Update:

Continue to inform staff
via the newsletter and
line Managers

Continue with regular
meetings with union
representatives.

Page 72 of 77



Ref no. Risk Consequence Score / Risk reduction measures & Score / Further Action Action Milestone‘
description level of controls residual owner Dates
inherent risk
risk score
Two version of the newsletter have
been shared with staff at key points in
the project. The business managers
for Conwy and Denbs H&l have been
identified as Communication Officers
and are developing the
Communication Plan. Service Design
workshop has been held with
Managers, who are better informed to
engage with their staff on the Project.
The 1* union meeting has been held
with positive feedback. Further
— meetings are planned.
JH&ER6 That the lack of | = Weakens the B1 Members from across the two B1vay 12) | Engage with the cabinets | Project Aug/Sept
(01/@712) | unequivocal partnership. authorities have been engaged over B1 (u 12) | atthe end of Stage 2 (see | Lead/Proje 2012
) political and = Negative impact on the the last 3 years in workshops to Project Plan) ct Manager
> corporate moral and motivation of support and drive the development of
[00) support will employees. a Joint H&l Service. The feasibility
- undermine the | = Project is not led from study* presented to Cabinet in Senior
‘project’. the front and cannot December was supported with Undertake a Gateway Responsibl Sept
succeed. caveats. Review e Officer 2012
= Exacerbates risk (SRO)
JH&I_R7

Elections will take place in May which
may result in a new administration
and new portfolio holders for this
Service (or aspects of it).

July 2012 Update:

The Portfolio Cabinet Members have
been briefed on the project, and have
agreed to join QAT1 with regular

Page 73 of 77



Ref no. Risk Consequence Score / Risk reduction measures & Score / Further Action Action Milestone‘
description level of controls residual owner Dates
inherent risk
risk score
opportunities to meet to discuss and
input to the developments. This risk
has been exacerbated by the H2S
Transport Cabinet Report
JH&I_R7 That a lack of = Negative impact on the B2 ; : B2(may 12) | Finalise the Project Sept 2012
(01/05/12) engage_ment more|1I and motivation of E‘rjgjcc)avc\:/;nl\%:ggaeprﬁ‘rzmAt;r)Tr]i?gtOc;fZ?a (ul12) | Communication Plan. Manager
?n hreS|stan_c|:|e grlnp o%ﬁes. fth workshop was held with staff to Continue to inform staff
0 change wi = olows Ihe pace of the consider the vision, opportunities, via the newsletter and
‘undfarm,lne the project. . benefits and risks. Delegates line Managers
El project’. - Ca?hnegatll\_/tely ]:rteract contributed well to the sessions. The Continue with regular
o on the quanty ot the PM assured delegates that (i) the meetings with union
) se;v!cerc]iel;vered nhow analysis from the day would inform representatives.
0] . g?(.”":jt edutulre.d the Vision, Project Documentation,
S5 tied and value Gateway Review and FBC, (ii) all
% employees leave. participants would approve the final

analysis, and (iii) all employees would
get an opportunity to consult on the
Vision, Benefits, and raise risks.
Workshop analysis has been
distributed and feedback requested.

The JH&I Project Team will take
responsibility for 1ROOT until the
FBC is produced. The intention is to
make the publication more meaningful
by using it to keep employees up to
date in real time and as a vehicle for
consultation and feedback.

July 2012 Update:

Two version of the newsletter have
been shared with staff at key points in

Page 74 of 77



Ref no.

Risk
description

Consequence

Score /
level of
inherent
risk

Risk reduction measures &
controls

Score /
residual
risk
score

Further Action

Action
owner

Mileston
Date

]

the project. The business managers
for Conwy and Denbs H&l have been
identified as Communication Officers
and are developing the
Communication Plan. Service Design
workshop has been held with
Managers, who are better informed to
engage with their staff on the Project.
The 1% union meeting has been held
with positive feedback. Further
meetings are planned.

JH&I_R8
(01/05112)
(e

€8 usrep

That conflicting
local priorities
will undermine
the ‘project’

= Missed opportunity to
realise benefits and
capitalise on the
integration work to date
within Service Areas.

= Project loses direction
with success unlikely.

B2

The existing H&I Collaboration
Officers Group and the H&I
Collaboration Board meet throughout
the year with membership across the
two groups covering Members, Chief
Executives, Corporate Directors, and
Officers. These groups are a key part
of the Project Structure.

July 2012 Update:

The Portfolio Cabinet Members have
been briefed on the project, and have
agreed to join QAT1 with regular
opportunities to meet to discuss and
input to the developments.

(May 12)
(Jul 12)

Continue to meet with the
Portfolio Holders

Distribute the staff
newsletters to the
Members

Project
Lead

Sept 2012

JH&I_R9
(01/05/12)

That the lack of
a Vision will
lead to
misconception

= The project lacks
ownership and
credence.

= Project has no clear

A2

Following the appointment of a
Project Manager in April 2012, a
workshop has been held with staff to
consider the vision, opportunities,

B2

Consult with Employees
on the Vision (part of
publication).

Project
Lead /
Project
Manager

ASAP

Page 75 of 77



Ref no. Risk Consequence Score / Risk reduction measures & Score / Further Action Action Milestone‘
description level of controls residual owner Dates
inherent risk
risk score
direction with success benefits and risks.
unllkely. : From this a draft Vision has been
' Unreahst.lc developed ready for consultation with
expectations. Stakeholders.
Remove: Vision has been developed
through the Visioning Workshop and
has been adopted
c
JH&ER10 | External = Fragmented Service (0] . (0% May 12) | HOS (Project Lead) to Project Aug 2012
(01/(8112) (Regional / = Wasted time and . L'}fssig'?;mgfiﬂgqﬂ tn;r;inmasi :23 (Jul 12) | map out (service area, Lead (revised
(:SD National) resources progressing national developments size of collaboration, date)
collaboration the H&I Collaboration | timing) the risk areas for
og agendas for Agenda the project in relation to
whole service = Disruption to any regional or national
or service employees developments
areas,
may impact or
overtake the
H&l
Collaboration
Agenda
JH&|_R11 | Theriskthat | = Systems will not be B2 | Conwy and Denbighshire ICT B2 | provide ICT staff with the | Froiect Aug 2012
(01/05/12) ICT changes running as one Departments produced a joint report relevant information as Manager
are too * Data mtegrlty for the Conwy and Den Officers completed
complex and comprom!sc_ed Group in July 2011. Further to that
.COStIy to ) Se'f"'ce difficult to report, a second report was written
implement deliver as one

Negative impacts on
customer service and

estimating costs to support Highways
and Infrastructure Service in a

Page 76 of 77



Ref no.

Risk
description

Consequence

Score /
level of
inherent
risk

Risk reduction measures &
controls

Score /
residual
risk
score

Further Action

Action
owner

Mileston
Date

]

G8 usjepnL

performance
management

* Increasing costs to run
an alternative solution,
and/or rectify issues.

number of scenarios based around
the location of the staff under the joint
service.

These costs will need to be revisited
once the Accommodation Strategy is
in place and the Service Areas
Design, including the staffing
structure (number of staff) is clearer.

July 2012 Update:

ICT meeting has taken place and a
work package prepared. The draft
Service Design has been developed
and is being shared with staff.
Further work is underway to staff the
model and undertake the
accommodation option appraisal

Page 77 of 77

* Conwy CBC and Denbighshire CC Joint Highways and Infrastructure: Report on the Development of a Fully Integrated Service (Dec 2012)



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen 86



e~
CoNwy

CYNGOR BWRDEISTREF SIROL
COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

Gwasanaeth Effeithlon mewn
Partneriaeth

Efficient Services in
Partnership

CYNGOR
Sir Ddinbych
Denbighshire
COUNTY COUNCIL

Communication Plan

Conwy(CBC) & Denbighshire(CC) Collaboration

Conwy & Denbighshire Highways and

Infrastructure Services have in place a

Communication Strategy (Aug 2012) to ensure that; consistent and clear messages are
promptly exchanged between CCBC and DCC H&l Management and stakeholders, and to
enable best practice to be adopted. The Strategy (see Appendix 1) was developed by the
H&I Communications Officers; Paul Banholzer for Conwy, and Sue Hudson for Denbighshire.

The purpose of this Communication Plan is to detail the approach to sharing information on
how Conwy and Denbighshire will be proceeding with collaboration, following the detailed
study on the viability of proceeding with a fully integrated service. The plan works to the
principles, aims and methods of the overarching H&l Communication Strategy.

Representative group/s
Identification of stakeholders
includes consideration of-

- who is affected;

- who is interested;

- who is important;

- whether there are any other
government agencies that
hold an interest in the matter
on which consultation is
required

Stakeholders:

=  Welsh Government

= LA Scrutiny & Cabinet Members

= (CCBC & DCC Collaboration Officers Group
= H&I Employees

* Non-aligned H&l Services

= Support Services for H&I

= LA Employees

= Unions

= Local Press

Indicate below the stakeholders to which the communication is most relevant:

M H&l Employees
™ LA Scrutiny & Cabinets
M Welsh Government

Managing Officer

Stuart Davies, Head of Highways & Infrastructure for Conwy & Denbighshire

Target Start Date

25" September 2012

Target End Date

31% October 2012

Background/History

- Where did the project or
matter being consulted on
emanate?

- Does information already
exist on the matter?

- Are there any background
issues that need to be
monitored?

- Is it part of a larger project or
process?

- What is the current
situation?

Conwy and Denbighshire are committed to developing collaborative ways of working
where there is a business case to do so. Our authorities have a strong track record
on collaboration and we want this to continue over the lifetime of our new
administrations.

Our collaboration on Highways and Infrastructure is delivering benefits to our
residents and both councils are committed to strengthening joint working wherever
there is a clear financial or service case. Three years ago Conwy and Denbighshire
were the first in Wales to appoint a joint head of Highways and Infrastructure
Services in order to deliver service improvements and drive out financial savings.
Over the past three years our Highways and Infrastructure collaboration has
delivered £300k of savings which allowed both councils to invest in other priorities or
prevent cuts to services. We have also appointed joint management in important
areas: school passenger transport and street lighting.

These achievements and our commitment to collaboration in this area had led us to
consider fully integrating all the sub-services within the Highways and Infrastructure
Service under a single fully integrated management structure. In early 2012 the

Version 1 — 14/09/2012

Aauidalen 87




Authorities commissioned a detailed study into whether or not there is a business
case for doing this. That study has now been completed and is attached to this
report. The detailed study shows that the costs of fully integrating the service would
be prohibitive. In addition the perceived advantages appear not to outweigh the
considerable disruption and possible dip in service that would be involved. For these
reasons the recommendation from the Conwy and Denbighshire Joint Collaboration
Board, supported by both Corporate Executive Teams, is not to proceed with the fully
integrated model.

The Way Forward

Our two authorities remain committed to pursuing other ways of strengthening our
collaboration. We will look for further opportunities to rationalise management,
reduce costs and improve services to our residents. This will include the following:
=  We will strengthen those areas of sub-service that are under single
management.

=  We will explore the Highways and Infrastructure sub-service areas|
where collaboration might bring benefits to our residents.

= We will explore local (Authority specific) opportunities for
collaboration and joint management arrangements between existing
services.

=  We will maintain and develop our commitment to the regional
developments on transport which, if delivered well, may secure
additional benefits. Decisions will need to be based on a sound
business case for change for in respect of such elements.

In the light of the recommendation not to fully integrate, it is now necessary to
consider whether or not the current model of service delivery is the best model for
the future. The two chief executives have commissioned a working group to
consider the available options, consisting of two corporate directors Sasha Davies
from Conwy and Hywyn Wiliams from Denbighshire, supported by; Danielle
Edwards (Project Manager) who led the study and has significant knowledge of the
area, the S151 Officers, and the HR Heads of Service. The brief given to the
corporate directors is that the options must consider the following:
= deliver financial savings for both councils without loss of important
services to residents;

= strengthen the collaborations that the two authorities have committed
themselves to at a sub-service level, i.e., school transport and street
lighting;

=  consider inter-authority as well as intra-authority options for models of
service delivery;

= ensure that options for consideration are consistent with regional
developments.

Corporate directors have been asked to report to their Chief Executives by the end
of October. This will lead to a report to Cabinets in November recommending  the
way forward.

Relevant Statutory
provision

Are there any statutory or non-
statutory needs or
requirements that apply to this
provision?

Links to:

Welsh Government COMPACT for change (March 2011) — Highway Engineering
Service

Commitment:

= Local Government and Welsh Government to review the interface between the
Trunk Road Agencies and the Regional Transport Consortia’s constituent
authorities and joint working between highway engineering services to support
the planning, management and delivery of strategic highways services (June
2012).

= Local Government with support of Welsh Government to identify and implement
quick wins by Regional Transport Consortia (March 2013).

= To develop a business case and implement change (March 2013—March 2014).

Version 1 — 14/09/2012

Tudates 88



TAITH - North Wales Regional Passenger Transport Management

Working to transform and modernise transport services in North Wales to create an
efficient, effective 21% century service.

Purpose / objectives /
scope

Why is the communication
being undertaken?

What is the policy, plan or
strategy you are
communicating about?

What matters need to be
decided?

Is there an expected outcome
of this communication?

What is the preferred outcome
of the communication?

What is hoped to be achieved
from the communication?
Why is the communication
taking place at this time?

The purpose of this communication is to detail the approach to sharing information
on how Conwy and Denbighshire will be proceeding with collaboration, following the
detailed study on the viability of proceeding with a fully integrated service.

The outcome of this communication is that all stakeholders feel they have received
information that is honest, open and accurate, at a time that is relevant and current
(as per the principles of the Communication Strategy). Staff working within
Highways and Infrastructure for both CCBC and DCC have been consulted and
communicated with leading up to, and during the life of this project. This has
spanned a period of around 3 years, and staff are keen to be told what the future
holds for their Service and themselves.

One of the key aims is to ensure that staff in both authorities are aware of, and
understand the reasons behind the message we will be taking to Scrutiny and
Cabinets in October.

Any feedback from staff regarding this communication can be evaluated, monitored
and reviewed through the ‘Communication Cycle’ - section 8 of the H&l
Communication Strategy (Appendix 1)

Method

What kind of communication is
most suited to the issue?

- Letter to key body/bodies
- Face to face meeting

- Mail-out feedback forms
- Public forums

- Website feedback

- Advisory committees

- Anonymous survey

- Discussion groups

1. Letter to the Minister

A joint letter from the Leaders of Conwy and Denbighshire Councils is sent to the
Minister for Local Government and Communities, Carl Sergeant AM by the 20"
September 2012, advising him of the direction of travel of both Councils in relation to
integration and collaboration, and inviting him to discuss the issue further.

2, Briefing Meeting with the CCBC & DCC H&I Service and Sub-service
Managers

Date: 25th September 2012

Time: 2pm to 4pm

Location: Caledfryn, Denbigh

Purpose:

The purpose of the meeting is to (i) share with managers prior to the Scrutiny and
Cabinet meetings, how Conwy and Denbighshire will be proceeding with
collaboration, and (ii) to ask managers to plan time between the 4th October and the
10th October 2012 to disseminate this information to all staff within their teams. To
support the meetings, a Newsletter will be sent to all staff on the 4th October, with
copies printed for those staff that do not have access to a PC.

The briefing meeting invitation will be extended to the Heads of Service for those
sub-service that do not align (CCBC & DCC Environmental Services, CCBC
Community Development Services, CCBC Corporate Civil Contingencies, and DCC
Corporate Finance).

3. Sharing with the Collaboration Officers Group

As key contributors to the report, this group (on which sits representation from the
support services) will receive a copy of the Newsletter on the 25" September to
ensure they are informed at the same time as the JH&I Service Managers.

4. Informing the Unions

The JH&I Project Unions Group will receive advance notification of the Newsletter on
the 3" October 2012, explaining that it will be distributed to staff the next day.

5. Newsletter to Staff and Members
To support the meetings, on the 4th October 2012 a Newsletter will be distributed to
= all CCBC & DCC H&l Staff (with copies printed for those staff that do

not have access to a PC);
= all CCBC & DCC Members

Version 1 — 14/09/2012

Autdalen 89




The Newsletter will:

(i) reflect the message to the Minister (Method 1 above);

(ii) provide the dates for Scrutiny and Cabinet meetings in both CCBC and
DCC;

(iii) explain that these will be open meetings and that both the covering report

and the ‘Report on the Draft Service Design’ will be available on the Intranet
no later than the 5™ October in DCC, and the 10™ October 2012 in Conwy;
and

(iv) provide a link to relevant pages on the Internet:

http://modgoveng.conwy.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=450&MId=3476
&Ver=4 for CCBC (English)
http://modgovcym.conwy.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=450&MId=3476&Ver=4
for CCBC (Welsh)
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=268&MId
=4630&Ver=4&LLL=0

for DCC (English)
https://moderngov.denbighshire.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?Cld=268&MId=4630&
Ver=4&LLL=1

for DCC (Welsh)

6. Scrutiny and Cabinet Meetings
The dates for Partnership Scrutiny and Cabinet in both LAs are:

Partnership Scrutiny Cabinet
DCC 11" Oct 2012 23" Oct 2012 (am)
CCBC 16" Oct 2012 23" Oct 2012 (pm)

The report will reflect the message to the Minister (Method 1 above) and provide
recommendations from the Collaboration Board for progressing collaboration both
across CCBC and DCC, and internally within their LAs.

7. Notification of the Executive Decision from CCBC and DCC Cabinets

An e-mail will be distributed on the 24" October 2012 sharing the executive decisions
from both the CCBC and the DCC cabinets, and informing staff of the content of the
press release to:

= all CCBC & DCC H&l Staff;
= all CCBC & DCC Members; and
= the members of the Collaboration Officers Group (on which sits
representation from the support service)
In order to reach those staff without access to a PC, the Managers will be required to
cascade the message through their teams with the support of the H&I
Communications Officers.

8. Statement to the Press

The covering report and attached full report will be in the public domain from the 5
October. Advice from the Press Office is to have a press release prepared sharing;
the dates that Scrutiny and Cabinet will be considering the paper, what they will be
considering, and how decisions will be made. The release will be based on the letter
to the Minister.

Version 1 — 14/09/2012

Tudatesn 90




Timeline for the
Communication Plan

Communication Activity Date
1. Letter to the Minister 20/09/2012
2. Briefing Meeting with the CCBC & DCC H&l Service and
Sub-service Managers, inc. the HOS for those sub- 25/09/2012
services not aligned.
3. Sharing with the Collaboration Officers Group 25/09/2012
4. Informing the Unions 03/10/2012
5. Newsletter to Staff and Members 04/10/2012
6. Scrutiny and Cabinet Meetings
6.1  DCC Partnership Scrutiny 11/10/2012
6.2 CCBC Partnership Scrutiny 16/10/2012
6.3 DCC Cabinet 23/10/2012
6.4 CCBC Cabinet 23/10/2012
7. gcc):tgugggir; g{sthe Executive Decision from CCBC and 24/10/2012

10 | Information provision - The Newsletter will be distributed electronically and will be provided as a hard copy
_ What information is bein for those without access to a PC.
; g - The newsletter will clearly articulate the reason for this communication (see 8.4,
provided to stakeholders to above)
: - >
inform the'/r input/f .eedback. - The covering report and ‘Report on the Draft Service Design’ will be available to
- Does the information view on each LAs website prior to the Scrutiny and Cabinet meetings.
articulate clearly the - The Newsletter will strive to meet the principles of the H& Communication Strategy
purposes, objectives and by ensuring the information within is honest, open and accurate.
methods of the
communication process?
- Is the information
written/published in a way
that is easily understood?
11 | Resources/adyvice (inc. This Communication Plan has been considered and agreed by the Joint Conwy and

purchase of advice)

- Resources may be available
internally from other areas
within LAs, other agencies,
or available for purchase.

- Have you consulted other
areas of expertise?

- Are there provisions for the
purchase of advice /
support/research if required?

- Also consider material
resources. e.g. are meeting
rooms required?

Denbighshire Highways and Infrastructure Collaboration Board, and has been quality
assured by the Conwy and Denbighshire H&l Communication Officers.

Specialist support and advice has informed the ‘Report on the Draft Service Design’
from areas such as; Legal, HR, ICT, Property, Finance, and Business.

In order to facilitate the Communication Activities, the Project has a modest budget
which will be used to fund (in the main) translation costs. All rooms booked for this
communication have been free of charge.

Version 1 — 14/09/2012

Autdalen 91




Appendix 1

Conwy County Borough Council / Denbighshire
County Council

Highways and Infrastructure Services

Communication Strategy

August 2012

Documentation Control
Organisation | CCBC & DCC — H&IS
Work Group | Communication Officers
Status Final Draft
Version 1.0
Last update | SH/PB 9" August, 2012
Review Date | N/A at this time

Version 1 — 14/09/2012 Tudaess 92



1. Introduction

The Highways and Infrastructure Services of both Conwy County Borough Council
(CCBC) and Denbighshire County Council (DCC) are undergoing major review to
establish the viability and potential benefits of a joint, fully integrated service. A good
communication strategy is required to ensure that consistent and clear messages are
promptly exchanged between CCBC and DCC Highways & Infrastructure Service
(H&IS) Management and stakeholders (see section 4) and will enable best practice
to be adopted.

2. Principles of Good Communication

The following principles apply to all communication undertaken by CCBC and DCC
H&IS:
e All communication is honest, open and accurate
e Communication is accessible to all, giving due consideration to our Welsh
Language Schemes and Equalities Policies
e Communication will be clear, using plain language and user friendly
approaches
¢ Communication will be timely, relevant and current
e Communication will be cost effective
All communication will reflect the values and shared vision of CCBC and DCC H&S.

3. Aims of this Strategy

To ensure that:

¢ Highways & Infrastructure managers and officers are involved and engaged in
the work of the service and any changes planned or required, so they have
sufficient knowledge to confidently represent and champion the Service.

e We communicate on all project activity relating to the Joint Highways &
Infrastructure Fully Integrated Service to all stakeholders via appropriate
channels and in a timely manner.

e The Principles of Good Communication extend to all stakeholders.

e The Service’s reputation is promoted, managed and enhanced.

4, Our Stakeholders

A Stakeholder is a person, group, organisation, member or system who affects or
can be affected by the Service or Project actions. Stakeholders for the H&l Service
are:

The Project Management personnel (Internal)
Council Members (Internal)

LA Executive Management Teams (Internal)
Employees (Internal)

The customer (individual or organisation) (External)
Suppliers of material or other resources (External)
Unions (External)

Community or other geographic region (External)
Professional organisations (External)

Communication with our stakeholders is required for the two key strands of the H&I
Service:

Version 1 — 14/09/2012 Aaidalen 93



(i) H&IS Routine Operational Communication
(i) Communication Specific to the Joint H&I Fully Integrated Service Project

5. Communication Tools

We need to adopt a proactive approach to communication, regularly reviewing
methods to ensure effectiveness. Current communication tools used are:

Induction

One to One meetings inc. PDRs

E-Mails

Notice Boards

Printed materials - 1Root, periodic Road Safety Newsletters
Team Meetings

Team Briefs

Use of the Intranet

Staff Surveys

Staff Council

In addition to these tools, a Consultation Plan will be prepared and approved prior to
any formal consultation with any of the stakeholder groups (see appendix 1).

6. Method of Delivery of this Communication Strategy

A Communication Officer has been appointed in both CCBC and DCC Highways &
Infrastructure Services. The role of the Communication Officers will be to:

(i) act as the first point of contact for any changes in policy, initiatives or
approaches; and

(i) to prepare and facilitate delivery of the communication of key messages to
stakeholders.

Key Activities For all H&IS Routine Operational Communication:

To disseminate core service messages to H&IS managers for cascade
to staff

To actively encourage staff engagement and feedback on core service
messages

To act as “knowledge managers” and be first points of contact for
communication of any new initiatives and key developments proposed
within the service

To bring to the attention of H&IS managers any important
developments or trends noted through customer contact systems

To prepare for and facilitate any consultation with other internal
stakeholders

To assist in any consultation with external stakeholders, if appropriate

For Communication Specific to the Joint H&I Fully Integrated Service Project:

To disseminate core project messages to H&IS managers for cascade
to staff

To actively encourage staff engagement and feedback on core project
messages

To bring to the attention of the Project Management Team any
important developments or trends noted through staff feedback

Version 1 — 14/09/2012 Tudaess 94



To prepare for and facilitate any consultation with other internal
stakeholders
To assist in any consultation with external stakeholders, if appropriate

7. Primary Outcomes of the Communication Strategy:

All H&IS Managers receive core service and/or project messages
using a method that abides with the Principles of Good
Communication (section 2)

H&IS Staff understanding of the core service and/or project messages
as a result of effective promotion and proactive feedback mechanisms
H&IS Staff & Project Management Team are aware of
feedback/developments and any potential effect on service or project
outcomes

All other internal and external stakeholders are informed of relevant

feedback and developments relating to service provision.

8. Evaluation and Monitoring and Review

We will endeavour to carry out regular reviews as to the effectiveness of our
Communication Strategy and plans in order to improve the method of delivery, the
ease of understanding and the engagement of staff. This will be achieved through:
e collating and evaluating feedback from stakeholders following both
informal communication and formal consultation activity
o review of Staff survey results and development of action plans
e review of response to requests for action from stakeholders

Start Communications Officers receive
information from Head of Service m
that requires communicating to all

H&l employees

Head of Service and
Management team consider
feedback received and

Communications Officers prepare a brief
(summary & communications approach) of
information for Service Managers

R

Service Managers use the brief
staff to communicate the
information to all employees and

agree appropriate actions Com muhn | cation request feedback using the

Cycle

methods outlined in the brief

)

Communications Officers
review and prepare a
summary of feedback
received for Head of

Service

\>

Employees consider the information and
provide feedback to either the Service
Managers or to the Communications
Officers (Service Managers pass any
feedback received to Communications
Officers for collation

Version 1 — 14/09/2012 Aadalen 95



Mae tudalen hwn yn fwriadol wag

Tudalen 96



	Rhaglen
	4 CYDWEITHREDU PRIFFYRDD A SEILWAITH CONWY A SIR DDINBYCH
	Appendix 1_Final_Report on the Draft Service Design
	Appendix 2_Communication Plan_JH&I_Sept2012_v3


